O

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd
MREZERA A

Stock Code  M&{AfL55% : 00229

2018

Annual Report

F



Corporate Information

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report
Independent Auditor’'s Report
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidation Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Years Financial Summary

NEER
RAEERSHREREBN
TERE

BIEE T wm R

m

EFRWE

IS

EEEARS

B AZ BN

RAEMBARRER

REEmEER

o)
B

=

k>
fein

BER

Sk
o

AR B M

hFEPHRHE

Contents
H &

18
22
39
54
62

63

64
65
67
69

144

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR



Corporate Information
ARER
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 83, is Chairman of
Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”). He obtained
a Bachelor of Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering) in
1959 from McGill University in Canada. He was a lecturer
at the Hong Kong Technical College. In 1964, Dr. Wong
founded the Company. In 1998, he was awarded a honorary
Doctor of Science from McGill University in Canada.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 53, was appointed
to the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company as the executive Director on 15 September 1997.
He graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987 and joined the Company
in the same year. He worked as an engineer, project
coordinator, engineering manager and then general manager
for operations.

Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 53, son of Dr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 19 April 2002. He became a deputy executive chairman
on 19 April 2007. Dr. Wong holds a bachelor degree in
chemical engineering, a master degree in economics
and a doctorate degree in business administration. He
is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Chartered Global Management
Accountant (CGMA), a Certified Management Accountant
(CMA) and holds a certificate in financial management (CFM).
He is an independent non-executive Director of Modern
Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (stock code: 0919) and Nan
Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (stock code: 1229), both
companies whose shares are listed on The Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is also an independent non-executive
Director of Tak Lee Machinery Holdings Limited (stock code:
8142) and Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 8366), both companies whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Wong
is Vice President and council member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Directors Association and an
independent manager of TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEEREREEEBHN

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 56, was alternate Director to Dr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company until he was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the
Company as a production planning coordinator in 1990.
He was appointed as a production manager in 1993 and
general manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005, Mr.
Mok has been appointed as a member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Guangzhou City, Nansha
District.

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit, aged 55, was appointed
a non-executive Director on 26 May 2014. Prior to the
appointment, he was appointed as an alternate Director of
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang (a retired non-executive Director)
on 4 July 2008. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and
Authorized Person in Hong Kong. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the
founder and executive director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 49, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 3 January 2011. Mr. Xiong graduated
from the Department of Computer Science of Nankai
University and obtained his bachelor degree in science in
July 1992. He then obtained his master degree in Economics
from Nankai University School of Economics in July 1995.
Mr. Xiong joined China North Industries Corporation in
August 1995 and took up the post of deputy general
manager of China North Industries Xiamen Corporation from
October 1999 to November 2000. Mr. Xiong is currently
the chairman and executive director of AKM Industrial
Company Limited (“AKM Industrial”) (stock code: 1639), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
In November 2000, Mr. Xiong joined Silver City International
(Holdings) Ltd. (“Silver City”), the substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) of AKM
Industrial, as assistant General Manager and was promoted
to the position of Deputy General Manager in March 2004. In
September 2018, he resigned the Deputy General Manager

4 RAYM@&US” al Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

of Silver City. He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited
(“Alpha Luck”), the substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha
Luck is the subsidiary fully-funded by Silver City, and Silver
City is AKM Industrial’s beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also
serves as a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. and an executive director of AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 76, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 1988. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive international experience in
garment manufacturing and trading. He is the founder of the
Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been holding
the position of executive chairman since 1982. Also, Mr.
Leung is the executive chairman of Fairtex Muay Thai Fitness
and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited with effect from 25
October 2013. He is an independent non-executive director
of Dickson Concepts (International) Limited (stock code:
0113), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 58, joined in 1994 as
an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fan holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the United
States of America. He is the chairman and managing director
of AsiaLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Technovator International Limited (stock
code: 1206), Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited (stock code: 0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868), CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882),
China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(stock code: 1062), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1868) and Semiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation (stock code: 981), all listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited (stock code: 1296), Lerthai
Group Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real
Estate Limited) (stock code: 0112) and CGN New Energy
Holdings Co. Ltd. (stock code: 1811), all listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, until his retirement with effect
from 8 August 2017, 30 June 2017 and 26 June 2018
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEEREREEEBHN

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 82, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004. Mr.
Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0440), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has
over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing
finance.

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
2013. He has more than 15 years of working experience
in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
He is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan
Capital Limited and independent non-executive director of
Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive directors of Huiyin Smart
Community Co. Ltd. (stock code: 1280) and Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1369), all
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until
his resignation with effect from 26 August 2017 and 4
September 2017, respectively. He also has three years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting. He is
a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a
member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of
commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2018, the Group faced
the challenges of increasing operating costs and lower
US sales growth impeded by the US China trade dispute.
During the 4th quarter, the Group also faced appreciation of
US dollars against Renmibi. Despite all these uncertainties,
the Group managed to outperform compared with most
of our peers because of our focus on research and
development (“R&D”) and innovations. Business growth
momentum continues as R&D expenditures in 2018 brought
positive results. Consequently, for FY2018, the Group’s
consolidated turnover increased to HK$1,285,918,000,
representing an increase of 28.89% as compared with the
same period in the previous year. Net profit of the Group
was HK$52,574,000, representing a significant increase of
44.19%, as compared with the net profit of HK$36,462,000
of the same period in FY2017. Cash generated from
operations was HK$15,286,000 in FY2018. Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of FY2018 was HK$190,007,000
(of which HK$29,403,000 were dividend paid out during
FY2018) as compared with HK$263,777,000 at the
beginning of FY2018. The positive operating cash flow and
substantial cash balances enable the Group to continue
paying dividends to the shareholders. At the same time,
the Group continues to invest excess cash in R&D, new
technology and automation equipment. Consequently, the
Group was qualified to become a High Technology Venture
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Chairman’s Statement
TERE
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

At the end of 2017, the Group received qualification of the
High and New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”) in the PRC.
Because of the attainment of this HNTE status, the Group
is aware that increased R&D expenses may cause short-
term and medium-term profits fluctuation due to product
cycle theory. To increase the speed to transmit relevant and
up-to-date information to investors, the board of directors
of the Company voluntarily adopts quarterly reporting since
the first quarter of 2018 to ensure that accurate financial
information, as well as the Group’s most updated business
strategies, can be conveyed to the public and investors. The
Group has invested prudently to integrate and update the
information technology systems and automated production
processes, so that the Group’s strategies can be updated
and react to changes quickly. In FY2018, the Group invested
HK$59,089,000 (compared with HK$38,486,000 in 2017)
to set up new semi-automated production lines for a series
of new products, purchased injection moulding machines
and laboratory testing equipment to strengthen our R&D
capabilities. Part of the increased capital expenditure
was related to new R&D projects in order to fulfill the
High Technology Venture minimum annual investment
requirement; and we hope the investment in these R&D
projects will generate more sales revenue in 2019. Qualifying
for the High Technology venture status would enable
the Group to enjoy lower profit tax rate and receive tax
incentives from the PRC Chinese Government; and increase
our competitiveness among our peers.

The Group’s net profit in FY2018 was HK$52,574,000,
representing basic earnings per share of 10.71 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2017 was HK$36,462,000, with basic
earnings per share of 7.54 Hong Kong cents).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
INFORMATION

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance workplace
quality:

(i) Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies
were in full compliance with the labour laws of the
PRC and Hong Kong as applicable to the staff in the
corresponding locations. The working hours, benefits
and welfares of all staff and workers were also in
compliance with the corresponding local labour laws
and fulfilled the working condition requirements from
the Group’s major customers and US/European retail
stores who conducted regular audits throughout the
year by third parties such as ITS (Intertek Testing
Service) and SGS (Societe Generale De Surveillance).

(ii) Health and Safety: The Group was in full compliance
with the labour laws of the PRC and Hong Kong
applicable to the staff in the corresponding locations.
Occupational health and safety KPIs were illustrated
in the chart below:

Chairman’s Statement
TERE

RIE HERER

TFRIRER
REEERE4ERHRETERENEE

(i)

THERR : AEENSTIHRTEFEERRTE
BEMEEEEMERTEES A REES
TOABI - FRE B TM T AR TIERSR - FRBFEH
BRFEEMNS AP - RNEDSFEHER
E=77(Plan : ITS - SGS) HHEMETERNEIER
PHBETERYTIERENER -

EFEELZE AREZE2NAERRTEEENE
BREREMNEERTEE S TDAMIREES TEM -
BERERL 2HNEREMERFLHTIER

FY 2018 vs
FY 2017

2018 F

FY 2018 FY 2017 B B

2018 & 2017 4 2017 &

BT B B BT EUEARLL

(%)

Number of work injuries TiE&R 47 22 113.64%
Medical Expenses due to TEBERS (%) 87,111.35 15,516.74 461.40%

work injuries (HKD)

The management of the Group is proud that they
could provide staff with a safe work place although
work injuries increased in FY2018. The medical
expenses incurred in FY2018 was higher than that
in FY2017 due to more injuries at the factory when
we recruited additional new workers to meet the
production demand. The Group will try to instill better
safety awareness for new workers, and replace
hazardous processes with more automation in
FY2019 to lower the number of work injuries.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

(i)

(iv)

10

Development and Training: The Group provides
directors and senior executives with latest Listing
Rules training and also provides middle management,
regular employees and production line workers with
various relevant training. The KPIs in the development
and training of the Group are illustrated in the chart
below:

(i)

BREEI AREERESTMEMITHRABRMK
RAH EWMARBNEI AT REERE  ERE
T UREESTARESEARE - BRALE
BT R MRS EAERERERF2H TR

Average

Training

Hours per

No. of Employee

Employees BEESETFY

EEA™ FHIRFE

(hrs)

(/)N )

Middle management RAREIRE 466 45
Regular employees FHET 353 58
Production line workers HAESTA 2,238 103

Labour Standard: The Group adopts recruitment
policies that prevent child labour and forced labour in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Group also encourages workers to form labour
unions. A labour union was formed at the Group’s
Nansha, Panyu factory and union representatives
would hold regular meetings throughout the year to
communicate issues that could improve workers’
morale, upgrade the living quarters and working
environment, and report workers/management
disputes to the management of the Group.

RAYM*LJN Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO, emissions during the manufacturing processes,
minimize excessive use of resources such as electricity,
diesel, water and paper.

(i)

Carbon dioxide (CO,), Nitrogen Oxides
(NO,) and Sulphur Oxides (SO,) emissions

The two charts below illustrate the types of
emissions and their respective emission data. The
Group will continue to strive for measures to lower
CO,, NO, and SO, emissions and other air pollutants.
Because of higher sales turnover (28.89% higher
than FY2017), consumption of electricity and gas
inevitably increased. The Group took measures in
FY2018 to replace two private cars with 2 electric
cars. Thus, oil consumption decreased and CO,
emission only increased slightly.

Chairman’s Statement
TERE

RERERR
AEBELTRBRAREAOOE RN EEBRF
— LB PR R BEERINE  h - KRR
SERNBCE -

() Z&|LHE(CO,) BEYW(NO)RIREY
(SO ) Wy BERR
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FY 2018 vs

FY 2017

2018 &

FY 2018 FY 2017 B R B

2018 F 2017 F 2017 &

BIBE BB B BUEMLE

(%)

Electricity £ 20.91 18.58 12.50%
(kilotonnes CO,) (FAmE —|/bhR)

oil S 0.11 0.08 31.08%
(kilotonnes CO,) (FAmE —|/bhR)

Gas R 0.02 0.02 6.90%
(kilotonnes CO,) (FAmE —|/bhR)

Total CO, emission —E{tHmAHERE 21.04 18.68 12.63%

(kilotonnes) (FAmE)
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

Emission data from the vehicle owned by the group
are set out as follows:

AEEHRA R TENBREEEIIT

Nitrogen Sulphur Particulate

Vehicle Type Oxides (NO)) Oxides (SO)) Matter (PM)
HFHER FEMNO) FEW(SO) EIER (PM)
@ (¢) @

(52) (52) (52)

Private Car FLRE 8,463.66 189.42 623.16
Goods Vehicles HH 664,406.35 808.88 49,827.66
Total emission WHEME 672,870.01 998.30 50,450.82

Additional explanation: Regarding other Greenhouse
gases emissions, such as methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride, since the Group did not adopt
manufacturing processes that would generate
other Greenhouse gases, the management of the
Group believes our manufacturing processes fully
comply with PRC environmental laws, and we
received certification from PRC EPA department and
maintained our ISO14001 status.
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Furthermore, the management of the Group, working
with customers and suppliers, has successfully built
up a supply chain that fully complied with Restriction
of Hazardous Substances (‘RoHS”) and Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
(“REACH”) standards. Any non-compliant supplier
and their materials would be rejected immediately,
and not to be used in the manufacturing of finished
goods to mitigate any potential non-compliance risk.
Our RoHS and REACH test lab has also been ISO
17025 certified. All the sourced materials and finished
goods have been sampling checked for RoHS and
REACH compliance to ensure no hazardous waste
nor non-hazardous waste were produced during
any manufacturing processes at our factory. In
FY2018, there are 16.11 tonnes hazardous waste
(An increase of 19.69% compared to FY2017) and
565.08 tonnes non-hazardous waste (A decrease
of 19.41% compared to FY2017). Hazardous waste
increased in FY2018 because more new products
required painting process, therefore paint and thinner
wastage increased proportionally. Non-hazardous
waste decreased in FY 2018 because there was
better awareness of separating recycling rubbish
from non-recycling rubbish, and during by optimizing
design and metal/packaging processes, the Group
can reduce the amount of non-hazardous wastage.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

(ii)

Use of Resources

The chart below illustrates the consumption of

BIREM

EEAREE L2018 FH M FFMFE AN KE2017F

resources by type throughout FY2018 and show PRFEBRNEREERSBEERNEREENER
comparative data with that of FY2017: ATRTE
FY 2018 vs
FY 2017
2018
FY 2018 FY 2017 B B
2018 2017 4 2017 5
B BT BB ML
(%)
Electricity £ 27.26 24.05 13.35%
(GWh) (FIREL/NEF)
Oil JH 34.80 26.56 31.02%
(tonnes) (AME)
Gas R, 10,067.65 9,417.25 6.91%
(kgs) (F7=)
Water FKE 304.55 257.35 18.34%
(000m3) (FzHK)
Packaging Materials Used BRmrAE% 2,655.63 2,322.55 14.34%
for Finished Goods MERHEE
(tonnes) (AME)

Despite moderate increase in CO, emissions and
increase consumption of non-renewable resources in
FY2018, the Group was particularly satisfied with the
environmental performance as our operating team
achieved environmental targets that were in line with
our sales turnover growth of 28.89% in FY2018.
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(i)  The environment and natural resources

Apart from the effort shown above to minimize
emissions and use of resources, the Group also
initiated energy savings projects since FY2012
and FY2013. During these two years, the Group
invested in solar energy panel to heat up water
for our workers and installed LED lightings in our
offices (both in Hong Kong and in the PRC) and in
our manufacturing facilities in the PRC. Both energy
savings initiatives not only generated savings for
the Group, but also fostered a strong corporate
culture to promote sustainability from workers to
top management. Such culture enabled the Group
to meet the ESG reporting requirements early since
FY2012, and invested early to build up supply chain
loyalty, customer loyalty and enhanced our Group
reputation and image in Guangzhou, the PRC.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
and formulate some operating best practice procedures
by tightening corporate governance policies and setting
guidelines for preventing staff and workers from committing
frauds and engaging in illegal activities.

(i) Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all suppliers
in the Group’s supply chain. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corruption of the
Group’s management and employees. The Group
also has an independent internal audit department
reporting directly to the chairman of the Group’s
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and has a
whistleblowing system to notify the audit committee
of any potential fraud and malpractices.

(ii) Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has a
quality system that handled customers (and related
products) complaints. Root cause analysis would
be conducted on each major customer complaint to
avoid re-occurrence of product defects.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

(iii) Risk Management: The Group has updated the
policy on risk management, and the Board, the Audit
Committee and the management team will work with
outside consultants and auditors to identify potential
risks not previously identified.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
in order to create a better community by implementing
programs that built a better society through a wide range of
activities and initiatives:

(i) Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group
has begun a program to use more recycled paper
in operations including printing interim & annual
report booklets; and working with customers to print
product instruction books by using recycled paper
materials.

(ii) Investment in new talents: The Group continued
to sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group’s management
gave guest lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University during FY2018; and acted as independent
manager at the TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.

(iii) Education involvement: Members of the Group’s
management participated in fundraising charity
concert organized by the Hong Kong Philharmonic
Society to support community programmes for
young musicians from less privileged families; and
participated in Intimacy of Creativity, an international
music composer symposium organized by Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.

(iv) Corporate Governance: Members of the Group’s
management founded the HKINED Association
(Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Directors
Association) in October 2015 in Hong Kong, and the
Association held the third INED Conference on 22
November 2018 at Langham hotel to promote better
corporate governance practices.
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Create a better Society: Members of the Group’s
management actively participated in fundraising
event for the Hong Kong Correctional Services to
support education programmes for prison inmates
on 8 November 2018. Members of the Group’s
management also participated in fundraising event
for TWGH (Tung Wah Group of Hospitals) at TVB on
8 December 2018.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DM

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. Its
current ratio was 2.78 as of 31 December 2018, compared
with 3.10 as of 31 December 2017. The gearing ratio was
0.38 as of 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 0.33)
and it was computed by the total liabilities over the net
assets.

During FY2018, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 74 days, compared with 71 days in FY2017. The
inventory turnover in FY2018 was 57 days, compared with
60 days in FY2017.

Bank balances and cash were HK$190,007,000 as of 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$263,777,000), representing a
decrease of HK$73,770,000 as compared to the figures in
the same period in FY2017, which was mainly due to higher
level of inventory and higher capital expenditure and R&D
expenditure.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2018,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 38% as of 31
December 2018 (2017: 33%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The board of the Company has proposed a final dividend
of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share and a special
dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The proposed final dividend
and special dividend, if approved by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid on
Thursday, 13 June 2019 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 6 June 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 24 May
2019 (the “2019 AGM"), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 20 May
2019 to Friday, 24 May 2019, both days inclusive. In
order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2019 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2019.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
qualified for the final dividend and special dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 3 June 2019 to Thursday,
6 June 2019, both days inclusive. In order to be
qualified for the final dividend and special dividend,
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, should be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
31 May 2019.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DM

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In light of the straining relationship between China and
USA, the Group’s management continues to launch more
new products in the PRC and overseas. We adopt a blue
ocean strategy in FY 2018 to increase sales in both PRC
and Europe tapping into the niche markets. This business
strategy should enable the Group to generate more revenue
with higher valued-added customized new products to avoid
the adverse impact of China US trade dispute. The Group’s
management has identified several new niche markets to
use our new technologies and the Group’s management has
invested in setting up a new laboratory equipped with high
speed camera and more sophisticated test equipment to
develop more innovative grooming and air purification new
products. The Group’s investment in R&D enables us to
maintain the HNTE status and allow the Group to use new
knowledge, patents and innovations developed in the past
few years to find new business opportunities to grow.

In FY2019, the Group expects to place even more resources
in R&D and will have several joint development programs
with our customers and higher educational institutions
and research centers. We expect to launch new products
with 10T (Internet of Things) technology and connectivity,
and gradually incorporate features that would transform
traditional small household appliances into smart appliances
that can collect personalize user experience data and/or
communicate with end users.

In order to support the development and production of more
new products, the Group continues to invest in upgrading
the remote access of web-based operating systems;
“Smart” robotic system in facilitating injection moulding
and paint spraying processes; a custom-built injection
moulding monitoring system to keep track of moulding
cycles, moulding history and tooling life; and a remote
access monitoring system that top management can watch
and monitor operations at the manufacturing facilities.
New Fiber-optics network, ERP system upgrade, and full
implementation of bar code system to reduce logistics and
warehousing costs are ongoing projects to enhance the
Group’s management to make data driven decision for lean
process optimization.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Instead of setting Key Performance Indicator (“KPI”)
target for employees to try to look good and compete
with each other, the Group’s management will emphasize
performance leadership in FY2019 to foster a new culture
that emphasizes on teams work to solve problems and stay
market competitive, instead of working to meet performance
KPIs that focused on past and obsolete processes, rather
than processes more relevant to the future success of the
Group.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 36 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately ranged from 440 to 480 staff members, and
workers employed directly or indirectly ranged from 2,500
to 3,000 persons during the year ended 31 December
2018. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
quallifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Chairmen’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 21 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business
performance

— Analysis using financial
key performance indicators

—  Discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and
performance

—  Discussion on the Company’s
compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the Company

Pages 7 to 21
Pages 7 and 18

Pages 11 to 15

Pages 9 to 10

Principal risks and uncertainties facing Pages 20 to 21
the Group
Future prospects of the Group Pages 20 to 21
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:

Report of the Directors
ESERE

BHES FFRHEB2EERE

ARRBEFRM—YIATIE R R R B RA RIFRAE - %
ZHEEERETRMET - BEEARERFHM - BF - 15
Al BERENZEFHER - UHRRMEEIEFSSER
B -

ARRRFEEFPHRFAR  A—BEROIREAEEP
RUBBES - AR R BIRE R AR P MB R
HREW BRFERTMEARIR

ARARTENTH RFEBOEASMEBRISRER
A -

ETREFRMUER

AEEZT2HEBMELHASBRFE 2 RBELHE
EEMWRAZBDLIT -

Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBSE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
HEE BB HRESEE
The largest customer BAEP 20.22% N/ATiE A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 79.80% N/ATiE A
The largest supplier =AHIER N/A i@ 16.32%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREERSE N/A 7~ F 41.07%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 62 to 143.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 2 HK cents). The
Board proposed a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per
ordinary share and special dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents
per ordinary share (2017: a final dividend of 4 HK cents and
a special dividend of nil per ordinary share) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable
donation.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Alternate Director:

Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Dr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae; Mr. Wong, John Ying Man; Dr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin; Mr. Mok, Kin Hing and Mr. Zhang,
Yuankun are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include:
Mr. Huang, Jingxi; Mr. Law, Anthony Kwok Yung; Ms. Luk,
Yin Yee and Mr. Yan, Yong Sheng.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong, John
Ying Man; Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun and Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming
will retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming 2019
AGM. They will offer themselves for re-election at the 2019
AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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EEEHG

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAAQATZRHKIEERKRMER &)

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

()  Interests in issued shares () BITROER
Number of shares
R#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests  Interests  Interests Options Total AFEET
5% BAER  FEEZ  iEER BlRE B ROEIE
(Note 1) (Noted) (Note 5)
(1) (i4) (i5)
Executive Directors
HiTEEF
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 21.47%
BUAEL of a controlled corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
RENER IR EH RN ER (32) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man Beneficial Owner 15,639,448 - - 3,000,000 18,639,448 3.77%
BHREE ERERA
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin Beneficial Owner 16,217,972 - - - 16,217,972 3.28%
BXERL EaEEA
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Beneficial Owner 1,825,000 - - 3000000 4,825,000 0.98%
Rp@%eE ERERA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.30%
RRIFERE ERBAA
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.27%
BRERE EREAA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung Beneficial Owner 4,688,100 - - - 4,688,100 0.95%
PR E ERERA
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Beneficial Owner 1,638,100 - - - 1,638,100 0.33%
Bkt EaEEA
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming Beneficial Owner 1,323,800 - - - 1,323,800 0.27%
(A% E ERERA
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun Beneficial Owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
BEERE EREAA
Alternate Director
REE
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun Beneficial Owner 2,630,000 - - - 2,630,000 0.53%
it EaEEA



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

()

Notes:

Interests in issued shares (Continued)

(1)

The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial shareholders.

Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Dr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
which owned 105,875,181 shares in the Company
as at 31 December 2018. On 19 December 2018,
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited transferred 27,993,421
shares to Diamond-Harvest Limited. Please refer to the
announcement dated 19 December 2018 for further details.

Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 493,814,260 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2018.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

(ii)

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in underlying shares
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out
below,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

Participants (i

=

(ii) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) () any business or joint venture

partner, contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company controlled
by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

9,135,000 ordinary shares and
1.85% of the issued share capital

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at the
date of the annual
report

Maximum entittement 1% of the aggregate number of
of each participant ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of

grant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Within a maximum period of 10 years
commencing from the date of grant
of such options

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share options
granted

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Period within which
payments must be
made

21 days from the date of the offer

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the offer date or (i) the
average closing price of the shares
for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the option,
provided that the exercise price is
not less than the nominal value of
the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme

The remaining life of
the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per
share at 31 December 2018 was HK$1.06) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company.

No. of options

BRESTE (®)
R2018F 12 A31H  EF - EENEMBEATRER

EREA AT L  ZEERE R ERER TS At
BRERE1ELRD  IRBARRR’RGS (R2018F 12
AB1HEERMEAR1.068L) BRELE LT - BHE
PERERE T3 B AERRIE — ARG 2 Eima% -

EREHE
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1st Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate date of
January during during during atthe during which of grant  exercise
2018 the year the year the year year end options are Exercise  of options* 2%
R20185E RER RER RER RELN  Date exercisable priceper  RERE TFERH
1E18 Rz H#iz 2z A2 granted BRETGE share RHAHZ ZEHME
2G5 BREZE  BREHE  BREHE  EREHE SuAH 25 BRARE  SRTE* THUGE
HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT
Directors
£
Executive Directors:
HiTEE:
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - (3,800,000 - 30June2008  30June 2008 0910 0844 1.070
RRGEE 2008F6A0F  1029June 2018
A0856R30HE
2018567298
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July2012 20 July 2012 0690 0.690 -
12F7A208  to19Juy 2022
N1FTRANEE
02%7F198
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BREHE
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BRESTE (®)

EEgHG

Weighted

average

closing

Market price
value immediately
per share  before the

Held at 1st Granted Lapsed Period atdate  date of
January during during during which of grant  exercise
2018 the year the year options are Exercise  of options* 25
2018 RER RER Date exercisable  priceper  RERE RS
1E18 Rz H#iz granted BRETGE share RHAHZ ZEHME
&% BREHR  BREHA RiLBH ZHE BRARE  SRTE* THUGE
HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT
Executive Directors: (Continued)
HIEE: (8)
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 2,800,000 - (600,000) 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0910 0844 1,070
BRALE 12678208 to19Juy2022
N1FTRNEE
02%7F198
3,000,000 - - 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0690 0.690 -
12F7A208  to19Juy 2022
N1FTRNEE
02%7F198
Non-Executive Directors:
HHTEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - (450,000 30June2008 30 June 2008 0910 0.844 -
KBRS 08F6A308  t029June 2018
A0856R30HE
2018567298
300,000 - - 6 October2009 6 October 2009 0630 0610 -
2009F10A6H  to5 October 2019
009F10A6RZ
2019510858
1,200,000 - - 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0690 0.690 -
12F7A208  to19Juy 2022
N1FTRNEE
02%7F198
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BB Rl ()
No. of options
EREHE
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1st Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during atthe during which of grant  exercise
2018 the year the year the year year end options are Exercise  of options* 2%
R20185E RER RER RER RELN  Date exercisable priceper  RERE TFERH
1E18 Rz H#iz 2z A2 granted BRETGE share RHAHZ ZEHME
2G5 BREZE  BREHE  BREME  EREHE S4AH ZHE BRARE  SRTE* THUGE
HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
EUHHEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - (393,800) - 30June2008  30June 2008 0910 0.844 1.070
ZRERs 2008F6A0F  1029June 2018
A0856A30HE
018567208
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - (393,800) - 30June2008  30June 2008 0910 0844 1.070
BLERE 2008F6A0F  1029June 2018
A0856A30HE
018567208
300,000 - - (300,000 - 60ctober2009 6 October 2009 0630 0610 1.070
200910468 105 0ctober 2019
009F10A6RZ
2019510558
300,000 - - (300,000 - 20July2012 20 July 2012 0690 0.690 1.070
12F7A208  to19Juy 2022
N1FTRANEE
02%F7R198
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BREHE
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BRESTE (®)

Market

EEgHG

Weighted
average
closing
price

value immediately
per share  before the

Held at 1st Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during at the during which of grant  exercise
2018 the year the year the year year end options are Exercise  of options* 2%
R20185E RER RER RER RELN  Date exercisable priceper  RERE TFERH
1E18 Rz H#iz 2z A2 granted BRETGE share RHAHZ ZEHME
2G5 BREZE  BREHE  BREME  EREHE S4AH 25 BRARE  SRTE* THUGE
HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT
Employees 1,240,000 - (930,000) (310,000 - 30June2008  30June 2008 0910 0844 1,098
&g 208F6A308  t029June 2018
A0856A30HE
2018567298
260,000 - - - 260,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 0630 0610 -
2009F10B68  to5October 2019
009F10A6RZ
2019510858
1,425,000 - - (60,0000 1,375,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0690 0.690 1,100
12F7A208  to19Juy 2022
N1FTRNEE
02%7F198
Other eligible persons 900,000 - (750,000 (150,000) - 30June2008 30 June 2008 o 0910 0.844 1.100
HfpAERAL 2008F6A30H  29June 2018
A0856R30HE
2018%6 7298
19,762,600 - (2730000 (7897,600) 9,135,000
Notes: BfE -
The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names X TEFEZBRETIARFAERHEEAZERTZZRERL
of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.
* Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ~ * BN B AR B AR R sk A T8 (2niE AR ) H BB AT

ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Information on the accounting policy for the options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(n) and note 19 to the financial statements
respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BRESTE (®)
BREBREZSHBRRREHBEREMEFTHEZER D
BB TSR 5k 2(n) R BIFE19 »

B EXEREE  REE20184 12 A31 B IEFEREM
BEfE - AR HEMEZERAR  WEBARSKRERMNE A
A IEAMREEAEE AR R ST M HE BB E
FEm FANREBH @S2 T2 TR -

FTERRREADF 2RO REERD 2 EE

20184 12 A31 B » AR B IRIE 7 FH 6§ 45 336 15 5R
EFEZBRRELZM  RESEELSBREREMANSE
R TIAL /BB (TBIEES)NARARN MEERK
DB IBIEE F DI XV 5855 2 & 3 75 2RISR R A A )
W s

Number of shares
ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest AEER EHE
54 BRTRR EEER FEEE ROBEHE RIGED =
(Note 6)
(it6)
Substantial shareholders
TERR
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai Beneficial Owner & 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 21.47%
FWELL Interest of spouse (Note 1)
EnA AREGENER (3£1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial Owner 105,875,181 - - 105,875,181 21.44%
BEEAA (Note 2)
(72)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERFERARA T 2RO RIEERGD 2 EH

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (%)
Number of shares
ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest BIEER CHE)
54 BETRR EEER FEERE ROKEYHE OERES
(Note 6)
(it6)
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited Beneficial Owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 10.75%
ZHEEERAA ERBAA (Note 3)
(33)
Silver City International Interest of a controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.75%
(Holdings) Limited corporation (Note 3)
REER (EE)FRAA IR AR (:3)
China North Industries Corp. Interest of a controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.75%
PRI A TEARB AT corporation (Note 3)
iNe 0= o (583)
China North Industries Group Interest of a controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.75%
Corporation Ltd. corporation (Note 3)
FEEETXSERR AR IR ER R (53)
China South Industries Group Interest of a controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.75%
Corporation corporation (Note 3)
FHEREREERRAR IR AR (:3)
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.14%
BRTET corporation (Note 4)
iNe 0= o (514)
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.14%
Gertude Kwok Cheung corporation (Note 4)
BYREL T IR ER R (54)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.12%
ERBEAEA (Note 4)
(4)
Webb, David Michael Beneficial owner 9,957,008 19,215,992 - 29,173,000 5.91%

(Note 5)
(35)

&interest of a

controlled corporation
ERfAAR

REtEE AR

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1) Among these shares, 105,875,181 shares were held
through Diamond-Harvest Limited. This company is
beneficially controlled by spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai and Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae., Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai is also a shareholder, who owned 8.3% of the issued
shares of the above-mentioned company.

2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
hold 8.3% and 91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-
Harvest Limited, respectively. On 19 December 2018,
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited transferred 27,993,421
shares to Diamond-Harvest Limited. Please refer to the
announcement dated 19 December 2018 for further details.

)] Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Silver City International (Holdings)
Limited. Silver City International (Holdings) Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by China North Industries Corp..
China North Industries Corp. is owned as to 37.54% by
China South Industries Group Corporation and 56.70%
owned by China North Industries Group Corporation Ltd..
The above companies are wholly owned by B 7% Bz B &
EEEEZ B 2. Therefore, China North Industries Group
Corporation Ltd, China South Industries Group Corporation,
China North Industries Corp, Silver City International
(Holdings) Limited and Bl #fx Bl B EEEEZ B € deemed
to be interested in the 53,080,800 shares held by Alpha
Luck Industrial Company Limited.

(4) Among these shares, 40,119,668 shares were held through
Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares held through Sunnydale
Enterprises Holdings Ltd.. These two companies were 50%
controlled by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and his spouse,
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung, respectively.

5) The number of shares disclosed was based on the latest
disclosure of interest form filed on 4 September 2017 (the
date of relevant event was 30 August 2017) received from
Mr. David Michael WEBB (“Mr. Webb”). According to the
filed form, Mr. Webb beneficially owned 9,957,008 shares
and 19,215,992 shares were held through Preferable
Situation Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Webb.

6) The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 493,814,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2018.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 23(b) to
the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of
the year in which the Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144
of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
1o its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 23(b) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 23 to the financial statements fall
into the category of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change in the auditors
of the Company in the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company was in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
with an exception of a deviation from code provision A.4.1
and A.4.3 of the CG Code in respect of the service term of
independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to rotation and re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company is
appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However,
all of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association. In addition, the Company has received
the annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive director and the Board believes
that the independent non-executive directors continue to be
independent.

Under code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors who serve more than 9 years could
be relevant to the determination of a nonexecutive director’s
independence. If an independent non-executive director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. The papers to shareholders accompanying
that resolution should include the reasons why the board
believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.
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Save for Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, all independent non-
executive directors have served in the Group for more than 9
years. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.3
of the CG Code. However, all independent non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
and voting by members is by way of a separate resolution.
The Company will state the reason why the relevant
independent non-executive director who is subject to rotation
and re-election is still independent and should be re-elected in
the shareholders’ circular.

In view of the above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the standard of the
Company’s corporate governance practices is not lower than
those required in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2018.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for an
unspecified term. Please refer to page 24 of this annual report
for composition of the Board.
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All independent non-executive Directors have complied with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and have submitted to
the Company annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed on
16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed on
12 December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on
2 July 2004 and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun was appointed
on 1 January 2013. The appointment of Directors is not fixed
for a specified term, but they are subject to the retirement
and re-election requirements at every annual general meeting
pursuant to the Articles of Association.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarized as
follows:

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Dr. Wong, Raymond
Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr.
Wong, David Ying Kit.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit are
brothers and they are cousins of Dr. Wong, Raymond Man
Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year,
and will convene further meetings when necessary. When a
regular Board meeting is convened, the Board documents
will be sent to the Directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code so that the
Directors can keep abreast of the information to perform their
duties and responsibilities. The Board convened 5 meetings in
2018.
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The attendance of directors is as follows: EFHEBEROT :
Attendance Attendance
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
No. of Board No. of general

meetings held during

meetings held during

term of service Attendance term of service Attendance

Director Name HEHESERY Rate HERRASRE, Rate
ESEB FHRERRY HEE FHARRAERY HEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Y MEL 5/5 100% 1 100%

(Chairman) ()
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRGULAE 5/5 100% 0/1 0%
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & 3 BB+ 5/5 100% 11 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rfg®fth 5/5 100% 11 100%
Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng BRFIBSE 5/5 100% 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 5/5 100% 11 100%
Independent Non-Executive ~ B8t i7EE

Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2RI 5t 4 5/5 100% 1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 5/5 100% 1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming it 5/5 100% 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ ZEEE4E 5/5 100% 11 100%

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current market
conditions. No Director is allowed to participate in determining
his own remuneration. The remuneration received by Directors
from the Company during the year is set out in note 7 of the
financial statements. The Board has set up an independent
professional consulting procedure and upon reasonable
request, Directors are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without
presence of executive Directors during the year.

All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, e.g. updated Listing Rules training, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills provided by the Group.
The Company maintained the training records received by
each of the Directors in FY2018.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in accounting
or legal matters. The audit committee was established with
specific written terms of reference, mainly responsible for
reviewing the financial statements and annual and interim
reports and accounts of the Company, submitting relevant
reports and recommendations to the Board, reviewing
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the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk &4 RRIEBE
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman of the
audit committee and is responsible for reporting the results
and recommendations of the audit committee to the Board
after each meeting.
In 2018, the audit committee convened 4 meetings. Members 720184 » B ZE G X BH4 AT - KELFEB R
of the audit committee and their attendance are as follows: T~
Attendance
No. of meetings
attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HELESERE Rate
REEHE FHASHRE HE=R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) 2R84 (/%) 4/4 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 4/4 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (higR L4 4/4 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 4/4 100%
Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year &HZZE@EFEAMMON TEREENH2017FFEEE

included reviewing the 2017 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
the interim results announcement, reviewing the quarterly
results announcement for the three months ended 31 March
2018 and 30 September 2018, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks on
an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests of the
Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets. In addition,
there is regular dialogue with the Group’s internal and external
auditors so that both are aware of the significant factors which
may affect their respective scope of work.

The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to ensure Inside Information of the Company is
to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The
term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group,
because of his/her office or employment, who is likely to be in
possession of the unpublished Inside Information.

The Group’s risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to mitigate
such risks. The Group internal control system comprises of an
established organizational structure as well as comprehensive
policies and standards. Area of responsibilities of each
business and functional unit is clearly defined to ensure
effective check and balance. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets from unauthorized use or disposition,
and to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained
and financial information used internally and for publication is
reliable. The internal control procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
and fraud; but deem sufficient to ensure full compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

The audit committee and the Board carry out an overview
every six months on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. The review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and risk
controls. No material risk management and internal control
aspects of any significant discrepancies were discovered
during the review. Both the audit committee and the Board
expressed satisfaction over the effectiveness and adequacy
of both the internal control procedures and risk management
procedures for the year under review.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific written
terms of reference, principally responsible for reviewing
and approving remuneration plans for directors and senior
management, determining the remuneration package of
executive directors and senior management, including
benefits, pension interests and the payment of compensation.
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman of the remuneration
committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting results
and recommendations of the remuneration committee to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2018, the remuneration committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the remuneration committee and their attendance
are as follows:
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Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance

Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REEE FHAERRE o &
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) 2R84 (/%) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (higR L4 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 1/1 100%
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin =X AEELT 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man ERESTE 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during
the year included reviewing the remuneration structure,
remuneration policy and bonus system of the Group,
assessing performance of Executive Directors, considering the
salary adjustment for the year and making recommendations
to the Board. The remuneration committee also ensures that
no Director or senior management member determines his
own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors,
employees and other eligible participants. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman), Mr.
Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and Mr.
Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The nomination committee is to deal
with the appointment, re-election and retirement of Directors.

The nomination committee consider that in terms of
professional experience, skill and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

In 2018, the nomination committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the nomination committee and their attendance
are as follows:
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Attendance

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REAR FHAERRE HER
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) HIBER L (/) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS A 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 1/1 100%
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and
the nomination committee has been delegated with the
implementation, monitoring and periodic review of the
composition of the Board. When there is an appointment or
re-appointment of director, a number of aspects in designing
the Board’s composition should be considered, including
but not limited to independence, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
quallifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. The nomination
committee will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s)
for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to criteria including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
know ledge and length of service, contribution to the Board
etc.

When the nomination committee recommends to the
Board for the appointment of a director, it shall go through
certain process before the director is appointed. The
nomination committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort. The nomination committee will
find appropriate candidates after having regard to the criteria
and evaluate the suitability of a candidate by conducting
interviews and background checks. Upon considering
a candidate suitable for the directorship, the nomination
committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to
the Board for appointment. Relevant information will also be
provided to the remuneration committee for consideration of
remuneration package of the selected candidate.
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ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three general managers, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved
to the Board for decisions and has separately identified
those functions reserved to the Board. The Board will review
those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure that the
arrangements meet the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman is
responsible for the operation of the Board and the general
managers are responsible for managing the operations
of the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to
ensure a balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
chairman ensures that the Board to operate effectively and
perform its proper duties and discuss all important and proper
matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening Board meetings, consulting, determining and
approving the agenda of each Board meeting, and ensuring
that Directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The chairman oversees the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board and the relevant
committees on any intended changes. The chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company formulates good
corporate governance practice and procedure.
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Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive chairman, BIITEF - MIITESRAKEEEE T T EBER
an executive Director and a general manager, is principally EEESBEEBXKATEENLERER  BfESS
responsible for the daily operation and management of the M &EHRME R T - TEABESEMHT  LWERES
Group’s overall operations and implementing the Board’s & & BIZFURE o o - LAV B ERNEE M EHRE
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all AEPEEIE - RERBREE - YR - BIE - AFEFERKS
departments for implementation so as to realize the Board’s Al - BFSEHFINEZGIERE - BEETINHE - 86
objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible B THEGRIE - FER A B & HE BB A SO EE -

for the Group’s financial reporting, internal control, material

procurement and control, logistics, customs, taxes and legal

matters and compliance, coordinating close cooperation

among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and

encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and

effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a B{TESRALEBESAHLE T EZBELFEESEE
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily BEBFABEENLERER  BEREF2NLERBR
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations &t * NEFFEZIFINTT - LWERESSHEZMR
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy € ° b5 - BAAW B ERERER - A& - mERE
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so BI¥T¥E® * HASHFANERSIE@E BEEINS
as to realize the Board'’s objectives and decisions. In addition, 2 NEEIE TG - LAREIR A 7 E5% & 6= 518 A 4%
he is also responsible for research & development, production, HE1E ©

quality assurance and new product innovations, coordinating

close cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of

staff and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure

smooth and effective operation of the Company’s operations

and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general $I{TESRALEBEREGELA T EZBEPRFEESEE
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation EEXEBHBEENLERERE  EREFNEERER
and management of the Group’s overall operations and A&t @ NEAFKEZIFINT - LWERESSHEZMR
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and 7 ° lt9h » EXEWBEEAPEEF LZIBEASER
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as FERHEEARRZE -  EEETLHE QA ERTEIAE
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he BN A fHZm M @ BRE MR EZTEHFE A M - BIBR A
is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues at our KB RBIIRRH AR RIZLE -

Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments installation

and disposal, and overseeing all employee champions

programs to optimize costs and make sure our facilities are in

full compliance with local, international and environment laws

and standards.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is
a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services (including review of quarterly and interim financial
information, and tax services) for the year ended 31
December 2018 provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
and its affiliate were approximately HK$692,000, and
HK$319,300 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 54 to 61.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of the
Company are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
who are unable to attend the general meeting can fill in the
proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting and
return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a
general meeting if the Company has received requests from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. Al
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post: Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2341 8669

3. By email: ril@rilnk.com
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Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:

(i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

(ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of
the relevant corporate governance developments relating to
the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the directors.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2018.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account certain
factors, including but not limited to the Group’s expected
and actual financial performance, its retained earnings and
distributable reserves, the Group’s capacity from current
and future operation, future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend.

The dividend policy and the payment of future dividend are
subject to the Board’s continuing determination which would
be in the best interests of the Group and Shareholders and
are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
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@ pakertilly
R B [58] FR

Independent auditor’ s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to
143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

— y
.
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The Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

Impairment of trade receivables
BWE SRR

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R ET P M EEAREEE

Refer to Note 2(g)(i) and 14 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A S EHENL2(0)0) K 14

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$261,565,000 (2017: HK$194,209,000).
No impairment has been recognised during the year.
R2018F12A31H - EBEXEEEXNEWRE FHEFEE
261,565,000 7T (2017 £F : % 194,209,000 7T & A IF #&
HRRE °

The management has to apply judgement to assess the
level of loss allowance required to adjust the value of trade
receivables to their recoverable amounts. The Group’s
credit risk policy requires analysis of individual receivable
account balances, taking into account receivables that are
past due for more than 1 year.

EEHEFTRBAREKT - UHEWE SRS EEFE
ZHEHAIWEIERN  BREAELHE - EXBEER
b BN R Sk o A E Bl FE U AR SRR EE - W R HARE IR 1 F
B FEHAR TR

The level of judgement involved in determining whether a
loss allowance should be recognised and how it should
be measured, coupled with the fact that loss allowance
movements impact earnings, results in this being one of the
key judgmental areas that our audit concentrated on.
BERGERIELBRBERBABER NG EMS R
HERE - BN EBEABHEDHZERT - SHKREM
BV ETPT ST 8) — (ERASE 1 <R o

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BAEL T ERNEEFEE

° assessing the robustness of the management
impairment evaluation process and the adequacy of
the impairment of trade receivables;

A EREREMNGIEFESRE  UREKRES
ERNBEEESRE

° assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
provisioning policy, with reference to the ageing
of the customer balances, economic conditions,
concentration of counterparty risk and the past
history of debt recovery; and
DEZPEHBNRER - &R - SFFRBEF
MATEBKEES @ Th SEEEBEHER &

o reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging the management about their reasons
for not considering loss allowances against any
unsettled past-due balances.

EHRELELE RN THREFNBIEH
EL BB EERE - THRREA -
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The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R ET P M EEAREEE

Valuation of inventories

FEE

Refer to Note 2(h) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements

FE R BRI AR A TSR N 2(n) K 13

The Group operates in an industry in which developments
in electrical home appliances may result in inventories
becoming slow moving or obsolete. Its customers may
modify their products orders or shift their orders to other
manufacturers which would result in changes in product
and stock lines. These factors, in turn, may mean that
relevant inventory cannot be sold or sales prices are
discounted to less than the inventory carrying value.

MR BEREKEMETE  KAESENBRAESHEFSR
RSB - P AIRHENE M Bk H] EEB E HA
BUEY - ERBBEMRFEKTEL - MZEEEATRE
EREF  HEFEEEHE  HEBTHNZEREFERE
B

The value of inventory as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$170,995,000 (2017: HK$139,310,000) which is
significant for the consolidated statement of financial
position. Further, a write-down of inventories and
reversal of previous write-downs of inventories totaling
HK$802,000 (2017: HK$86,000) and HK$445,000 (2017:
HK$5,054,000) respectively were recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

2018412 A31 H & 77 B BB & % % 170,995,000 7T
(2017 4F : A6 139,310,000) * ¥4rE M Bk REM = £
BRI BHE2018F12 A1 HIEFE - EHRTE
WU S 1 802,000 7T (2017 4 « 715 86,000 7T) R T E
TS 445,000 7T (2017 £+ B#55,054,000 7T) °

Our audit procedures in this area included:

BAEL T mETRFRE

° assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology for determining its inventory provision
in the light of our understanding of the business and
the industry, including our professional judgement
of the age and nature of inventory, past usage and
new product launches;
ERHMEEBRITEN TR (BERMEEER
RRMENEEAE  BERERAEREM)

it EERETTERENFERSEE
° assessing the accuracy of inventory provisions by

examining the history or outcome of reversal of
previously recorded provisions;

BEFAARBHENELIBOER - SHEFER
e
o testing the carrying value of inventory by comparing

the carrying values to latest sales invoices for a
representative sample of items to assess whether
those items were held at the lower of cost or net
realisable value; and

AFHFEREE  BABRRUENGFERAERS
FHERRLE  TEZEFTERGRAARE ]
WFEFHREEAR &

° assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of management’s judgements used in
determining the carrying value of inventory.

ML AR EEEE T FEREERERANHE 2

RERBRS -
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The Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

Revenue recognition
ON

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R ET P M EEAREEE

Refer to Note 2(q) and 3 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E A EHEN L 2(0) R 3

There is a risk that transactions completed just before and
just after the year end could be incorrectly recorded due to
a high volume of transactions close to the year-end date.
AR FRETARAERS FRARFRETHAZS
ATEE AR IEHE ©

The Group also has a number of customers who have a
variety of shipping terms which means that the transfer
of control over a promised product occurred on different
timing bases (such as on dispatch, on receipt at port
of destination or on receipt by customer). This means
that there is an increased risk that revenue may not be
recognised in the correct period for sales occurring near to
the year end.

EXBNAZANERRTRANER  EEREZEMELEN
THIEMERNRNEELEAR (MREFR - BB 0
WESEFPIWER) - EERE @ I OFREENHER
= WA RTRERR E e EAR e R R B PTIE N ©

Our audit procedures in this area included:

BAEL T mETRFRE

° selecting representative samples of transactions
recorded before and after year end for substantive
testing by reference to the trigger event for revenue,
when contractually the customer takes control over
a product, and tracing back to third party carrier
documentation and customers invoices and/or
agreements;
BENFRAEFSNEAERRENZZERET
FEMAR  2ZRABESG  BRPTEAHNLE
SR RENETERNRE  WRPEEFE=7E
WEXHREPEER, iR

o examining the numeric sequence of goods delivery
notes before and after year end and investigating
any apparent abnormalities; and
BEFRAERNEmESERTIERF - FAEIELATH
BHEE R

° conducting substantive analytical procedures on
the pattern of sales just before and just after the
year end, including a comparison with the pattern in
prior years and corroborating the result of enquiries
with management about any unusual fluctuations in
sales.

HERAMENIEESBETEEUSTRER - B8
ERAEFENABLE  SENEFNEE R
EHERATREZE -
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises chairman’s statement, five years
financial summary and management discussion and analysis
included in the annual report (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, corporate governance
report, report of the directors and biographical details of
directors and senior management, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

Tong Wai Hang
Practising Certificate Number PO6231
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

— = 22
REBREK
(BtE2018F 12 A31 AIFF/Z)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(NBMAREN)
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
5T BT T BT IT
Revenue WA 3 1,285,918 997,697
Cost of sales SHEE RN (1,092,494) (847,973)
Gross profit EF 193,424 149,724
Other revenue E A A 4 3,211 1,208
Other net income E At F Uz 4 4,705 5,232
Selling expenses HEER (29,001) (12,679)
General and administrative — R RITEE
expenses (110,041) (96,842)
Profit from operations R 62,298 46,643
Finance costs B TS AR AN 5(a) = (198)
Profit before taxation RREL AR T 5 62,298 46,445
Income tax FriS %5t 6 (9,724) (9,983)
Profit for the year RN TR RIEL
attributable to equity R B F
shareholders
of the Company 52,574 36,462
Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic, HK cents HA B 10.71 7.54
Diluted, HK cents - B 10.62 7.45

62

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 20(b).

The notes on pages 69 to 143 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

GEeRBaRkAMEZERER

(B2 20184 12 A 31 HIFF[E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEREN)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year REEaF 52,574 36,462
Other comprehensive FEEHMEE(EE) WS
(loss)/income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified ZIESEFFEENER
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE
— Exchange differences on — MBI INE TS B B TS R
translation of financial EAEREN ZFE - |EIE
statements of foreign 2 FE
operations, net of nil tax (13,363) 21,048
Total comprehensive income EATBRREGEFEZ
for the year attributable EHNREEE
to equity shareholders
of the Company 39,211 57,510

The notes on pages 69 to 143 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2018)
SmEeMBMRRE
(20184 12 31 A#&E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE BT T ST I
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMEE 11 184,011 165,581
Interests in leasehold land held for BEGLEHEREERZ
own use under operating leases TR 11 6,664 7,403
Deferred tax assets EETIBE B 12(b) 3,296 5,296
193,971 178,280
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Ay 13 170,995 139,310
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMEIARTE 14 289,831 214,469
Tax recoverable AREIFIA 12(a) 2,140 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEEE 15 190,007 263,777
652,973 617,556
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMEIRIE 16 229,599 195,347
Dividends payable FERTAR B 258 232
Tax payable JERTTRIR 12(a) 4,737 4,162
234,594 199,741
Net current assets REEETFE 418,379 417,815
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERAEERE 612,350 596,095
Non-current liabilities ERBARG
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 12(b) 181 734
NET ASSETS EEFHE 612,169 595,361
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital [N 20(a) 461,807 453,723
Reserves i 150,362 141,638
TOTAL EQUITY R 612,169 595,361

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2019.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
A
Director

EF

The notes on pages 69 to 143 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

— S
RERRZER
(BZE20184 12 A31 AIFF/E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& ENRE N REEN TEETHE Bt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
sk BETTT BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETTT
At 1 January 2017 R2017%51 A1 B£8% 448,167 32,119 3,030 53,329 35,244 571,889
Changes in equity for 2017: 2017 2 i 88 :
Profit for the year RER R - - - 36,462 - 36,462
Exchange differences on RERNEBNITE
translation of financial BREANELZE
statements of foreign operations,
net of nil tax - 21,048 - - - 21,048
Total comprehensive income FERENGES - 21,048 - 36,462 - 57,510
Appropriation to PRC HEEE RERR
statutory reserve - - - (3,629 3,629 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ #LER S
— current year - ¥ 20(0)() - - - 9,718) - (9,718)
— previous year -5 20(0)(i) - - - (29,137) - (29,137)
Shares issued under share option 2 %472 BB R ERk (7
scheme
- gross proceeds - Bl 20(a)(i) 4817 - - - - 4817
— transfer from capital reserve - HEARERY 739 - (739) - - -
5,556 21,048 739 6.022) 3,629 23,472
At 31 December 2017 R2017E 12 A 31 B 453,723 53,167 2,291 47,307 38,873 595,361

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR 65



66

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

— 2
GEEREEX
(RZ 20184 12 A 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& ENRE N REEN TEETHE Bt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
sk BETTT BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETTT
At 1 January 2018 R20185E1 1 A&E 453,723 53,167 2,291 47,307 38,873 595,361
Changes in equity for 2018: 20185 2 EXZH
Profit for the year RER R - - - 52,574 - 52,574
Exchange differences on RERNEBNITE
translation of financial BREANELZE
statements of foreign operations,
net of nil tax - (13,363) - - - (13,363)
Total comprehensive income FEREERES - (13,363) - 52,574 - 39,211
Appropriation to PRC HEEE RERR
statutory reserve - - - (2,004) 2,004 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ #LER S
— current year - ¥ 20(0)() - - - (9,876) - (9,876)
— previous year -5 20(0)(i) - - - (19,553) - (19,553)
Shares issued under share option 2 %472 BB R ERk (7
scheme
- gross proceeds - Bl 20(a)(i) 7,026 - - - - 7,026
— transfer from capital reserve - mEARERY 1,058 - (1,058) - - -
Share options lapsed BB RE - - (374) 374 - -
8,084 (13,363) (1,432) 21,515 2,004 16,808
At 31 December 2018 R2018 12 A 31 B 461,807 39,804 859 68,822 40,877 612,169

The notes on pages 69 to 143 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

Fey

RERER

(B2 20184 12 A 31 HIFF[E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEREN)
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iz BT T BT T
Operating activities KETEH
Profit before taxation BT AR A 62,298 46,445
Adjustments for: P
— Amortisation of interests in — EHIRB S HERSE
leasehold land held for own BRZ tibfEs
use under operating leases 5(c) 398 386
— Depreciation —E 5(c) 31,004 26,928
- Finance costs — BIIERAR 5(a) - 198
— Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net — [EHF (U2R),/1BiE (3,184) 7,826
- Bank interest income — SRITHBHA 4 (3,211) (1,208)
— Net loss on disposal of — HEME BEK
property, plant and equipment Bt FIBE 4 776 1,032
— Write-down/(reversal of — ¥REE (Bl BEEREE)
write-down) of inventories, net FEFE 357 (4,968)
Operating profit before changes EEESRBAIKE SRR
in working capital 88,438 76,639
Increase in inventories EINFE (32,042) (18,331)
(Increase)/decrease in trade (38),/ WA E 5 R E A EURERIE
and other receivables (75,362) 20,555
Increase in trade and EINE 5 REAERARIE
other payables 34,252 21,920
Cash generated from operations &E&E4LZHE 15,286 100,783
Tax paid: A
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - FEAENGEHZ L (4,217) (1,448)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid - PRI EMER ST (8,215) (18,373)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded — B> 2 A5 R 2,634 -
Net cash generated from RETHEECESFE
operating activities 5,488 80,962
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for purchase of SNEEME - BENEE
property, plant and equipment (59,089) (38,486)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMKREBRIE
plant and equipment 444 1,109
Bank interest received SRITH B A 3,211 1,208
Net cash used in investing RELZBTHZESFE
activities (55,434) (36,169)

—E)\FFEHR AIRE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

HEHERER
(122018 12 H 31 AL F/ZF)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE BET T BT T
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from shares issued BATRE IR () 2 e
under share option scheme 20(a)(ii) 7,026 4,817
Interest paid SRR - (198)
Dividends paid SRR (29,403) (38,960)
Net cash used in financing MEEETHZ
activities RE&FEE (22,377) (34,341)
(Decrease)/Increase in cashand  (JA4) R E
cash equivalents ERE&ZEEER (72,323) 10,452
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1HZRER
at 1 January RE&ZEEER 263,777 251,634
Effect of foreign exchange HNEERSE ZE
rate changes (1,447) 1,691
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BZRE
at 31 December FEESZEEBR 15 190,007 263,777
The notes on pages 69 to 143 form part of the consolidated ~ FH 5 69 B M AEN I FREMBRE

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Rooms
1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.
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(B AREN)

| YNGR
FREEARAR(ARAT ) REBEMAL - ARG
PR N FE B IR B AP A A8 R EES
[>1811801-1813F °

2 FEEFTBER
) EHREH

HZE2018F 12 A1 AL FEZHRA VKRR BIEARF]
NEMBAR (5E [&E®E]) Z26KE -

hEGRAVBRENDBREFEEAZESY K HREEL
((BEBHBMEER RS - LABAZRIES S S
R ((EREHMAL ) BEH2MEER 2 ERE MG
XA BB GHER([FBEHEY ) RRE &5
RREHRURBEBRUEO 2 HBERTE - WELREHB
BERNFTEBEBRERIMERARFRF EMHRAZEA
PERIEST °

BEGREAGDHEM — L MEBITBEMBRESE
Al RAKBERARAZ RS HEERERKARRE
R o F2HENME 20 RUERASER S BERESH M
ERFNAFEHENREHRRNER -

AEERAZEANGTHRBEHIINT -

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

o HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

o HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 22,

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 28).

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 15 and HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and also discloses the
new accounting policies that have been applied from 1
January 2018, where they are different from those applied in
prior periods.

(a) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. There is no significant impact on the
Group’s financial position and financial performance upon
initial application at 1 January 2018.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes of
accounting policies and the transition approach are set out
below:

(i) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in HKAS
39 for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous HKAS 39
categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and
receivables and available for sale.

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive income and at fair value
through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model under
which the financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

Under HKFRS 9, the classification for all of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial
assets and financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

(ii) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and amounts due
from subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial
position).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)
(a)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)
(ii) Credit losses (Continued)

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for
accounting for impairment, see note 2(g)(i).

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018.

(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue
arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the consolidated financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

There is no significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and financial performance upon initial application at
1 January 2018. Comparative information continues to be
reported under HKAS 18.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes of
accounting policies and the transition approach are set out
below:

(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from sale of goods was generally

recognised at a point in time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods had passed to the customers.
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. This may be at a single point in time or over time.
HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred
over time:

- When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

- When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; and

- When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

The change from the risk-and-reward approach to the
contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach does not
materially affect the point in time when revenue is recognised
under the Group’s current contract terms, business practice
and accounting policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of electrical home appliances continues
to be recognised at a point in time. Currently the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the electrical home appliances have
been transferred to the customer. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in HKFRS 15, revenue is generally recognised in
accordance with shipping terms stipulated in contracts, which
is the point in time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of the finished goods and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits of the finished goods.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group recognises revenue from sale of
goods and this change in accounting policy has no material
impact on opening balances as at 1 January 2018.

(ii) Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Previously, the Group only applied such a policy when
payments were significantly deferred, which was not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
The Group did not apply such a policy when payments were
received in advance.

It is not common for the Group to receive payments
significantly in advance of revenue recognition in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group adjusts for a significant financing
component and this change in accounting policy had no
material impact on opening balances as at 1 January 2018.
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

(iii) Sales with a right of return

When the customers are allowed to return the products,
the Group estimates the level of returns and makes an
adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group does not adjust sales with a right to return
with the customers except for quality defects. Based on
past experience, sales return due to quality defects is not
material.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not materially affect how
the Group recognises revenue and cost of sales when the
customers have a right of return.

(iv) Presentation of contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability is recognised when a
customer pays consideration or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. To reflect this
change in presentation, the Group has made an adjustment
at 1 January 2018 as a result of adoption of HKFRS 15 in
which contract liabilities regarding receipts in advance from
customers, with an amount of approximately HK$2,651,000,
are now separately presented under trade and other
payables.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no further balance
of contract liabilities regarding receipts in advance from
customers.

(c) HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the
date of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from a
transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(c) HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration
(Continued)

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does
not have any material impact on the financial position and
the financial performance of the Group.

(d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

Subsidiaries

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(gy(ii)).
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which are 4.0%-4.5% straight line
situated on leasehold land, where the
fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

9.0%-18.0% straight line

9.0%-33.3% straight line

25.0% reducing balance
and 18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except where the land held for own
use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2(g)(ii).
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018:

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
amounts due from subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rate where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018: (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018: (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 1 year past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

Failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- An actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- An actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- Existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meset its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018: (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk: (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(q)
(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018: (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously

written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018:

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial assets not
classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting was
material.

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment

loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g0 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measureable) or
value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2(q)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 2(j)).

@)
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to

receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Contract liabilities

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(9)(i)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

U] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(g)(i).

(m)  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

(ii) Share-based payments
The fair value of share options granted to employees is

recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(n)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

90 RAYM*UJ Annual Report 2018

2 FESEBE @)

(o) Fis#H

AEEMERERBRAMHAREEREAEERBEZE

@J AERALREERREERABZ 2O ERENME

R EEERERASEMEENESESREREE - B
DHERAEME MBS R

ANEATE IR T iR AN JE FEER TR A - $ETJ““E$?AHZE*&¢HJ%
REE FEEMZREFTEMBEN 2HE - Aplid
FEEMNHIAELTAREE -

EERAEERABAOHATEMRERVEREZRE
E-ERZRREEENBBEENRYHE2WMA W ZREE
HHEBREZEZR - BLEHRBEEI A B RFBREER
RARMARBE RESE

BT REARZHIIMERIN - FABRIERIAR B KRIER
HEE(RAKRKAIGEARERBEHN TAEE 2 EERR)
YeER xHERAAATEANEREEMELREHRAE
EZARRERVGEN  BREEAZLOBREERAVERHZEM
EECER  BEREZRENSARER KA NE—ER
ﬁ?%ﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁmgh%ﬁﬁ%%@Zﬁ*

] SR ST B TR & 2 P EE A 2 IR IR B 1R A1 1R B Sk 1) A B s

ZHIRARE - ERERBEIEAVEREZERRE Eui
HERBRMARABRELRBERAELE ZELENREE

B IRERAR R WP RE— R HEE MR — &R
HER - MARMEENERHRAEEREL 2R —HHE
MR - BIFAGTEAER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

92 RAYM" Annual Report 2018

2 FESEBE @)

(o) Fr8® (&)

- WREEHREBEEMEE MUEFEENAEER
—IREHBABLIA TR R PRSI B R

- F—ERIERR © 3

- TRAZERVER - MWFERFHEARE
EFEtAEABEEN BRAERTRSEIKE
ELERAEEAARE 2 BMEA - ZFEE
R AR AEEMSEAPHARE -
SFRFERZEERFEZAE -

(p) BERIAREE

IMRAEBHARRERCBELE Z EHARER LTS
% MEEEEEN s SN M AE /] AR A 52 2 et B
stz R RSB E 2 Hfh B EFHRES - MREEH
BEEX - BIREITEBE S H 2 REFHRER -

IR RHEEEN & PR RIE - SEA B AREBREY
AISEZfEE RIERZEBRBEAIAAE  BLENZ
Sh < P BEEARE RIBR SN - INRABEBEARTETHE
FAREUHREELETEBMESESHFAE  ERELARA
BE - BIREEMmINR 2 AT BEIERIE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

The Group recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control over a product
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled.
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises in accordance with shipping terms
stipulated in contracts which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sale taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sale of goods was recognised on a similar
basis in the comparative period under HKAS 18.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(r)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Translation of foreign currencies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(t)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

FESEBE @)

BEAL
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RAREEERRE )

U) HAREE AR RS
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(i) EE/FII-—REXNBE QT G%QT
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NEHAERT]) °

(i) MEREERRB—EE=0E

V) EERRE=ZTEENEGERT
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v  EE/S-EERKENE - BZEFEE
M Sk A R B Y (8 B 37 5 8 (o] B B
Eo

Vi) ERETE)TRENATESSHERE

i o

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR

95



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(Continued)
(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

v)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Segment reporting

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of electrical home appliances. Revenue from sale
of electrical home appliances is recognised at point in time
when the control over the promised products are transferred
to customers upon the agreed shipping terms stipulated in
contracts.

Disaggregation of revenue from customers by geographic
markets is disclosed in note 10.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to

customers, net of discounts, returns and value added tax or
other sales taxes.

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

3 A

AEENETEEBRBERHEFTAER - HERAESR
WA S5 7 E O A R IR PR A IR AR TE O 40 TE A B R
REBLREFHORRRER -

BTSN EPWAD BT 10 E

WARHERTP ZHEE - MR RERIEERK
HAGHER -

4  HARFKE

INCOME
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other revenue Hipug A
Bank interest income ERITH B HA 3,211 1,208
Other net income Hi Rz
Net gain on disposal of scrap materials ~ H &R, F U 1,239 1,010
Net exchange gain b 5 F U a 1,442 2,747
Net loss on disposal of HEYE  BEK
property, plant and equipment HREFEE (776) (1,032)
Sample sales income RS 1,629 632
Subsidy income el g 356 1,036
Sundry income Hap e 815 839
4,705 5,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

98

5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BREADZF
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: BRAT A A TOASFOBR T 51 S T8 12 B
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT I

(@) Finance costs: (@) BIEERA
Interest on invoice financing BERETE - 198

(b)  Staff costs (including (b) EEAKBEES=ME

directors’ remuneration (FIsE7))
(note 7))
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMET 230,997 163,370
Discretionary bonuses BB EE L TEAT 4,714 5,845
Contributions to defined EHHE PR S FHEIH K
contribution retirement plans 17,869 15,482
253,580 184,697

(c) Other items (c) Hig g

Cost of inventories sold HEFEKAR

(note 13())* (MI7E13(0)) 1,092,494 847,973
Amortisation of interests in HIERBCEAERE

leasehold land held for Bz iR

own use under

operating leases 398 386
Depreciation e 31,004 26,928
Claims on sales” SHEEE A 11,076 -
Auditor’ s remuneration Z BB & 692 692
Product development costs* R 44,315 31,160

# Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$224,550,000 HETERAEBIREBKARITE BB 224,550,000 7T
(2017: HK$154,129,000) relating to staff costs and (2017 4F : B#154,129,00070) * A& EINBIER Lt
depreciation, which amounts are also included in the SRRSO EREESEERRBSRE -
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

* Product development costs include approximately ERRERABEEBIRARTERBNLOEE
HK$19,317,000 (2017: HK$17,524,000) relating to staff 19,317,0007T (2017 4F : ##17,524,0007T) + #% & FID
costs and depreciation, which amounts are also included in BRERMEO) FESTEERESE -
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or
in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

A BEHERFENNGE  ARRREBEZTEFARBRRE

Pursuant to an agreement with a customer, the Company
agreed to compensate certain claims by this customer
arising from defective goods with totaling US$1,429,000
(equivalent to HK$11,076,000) and will be settled by agreed
instalments. This compensation was recognised in profit or
loss and included in “Selling expenses” during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

el
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBEHREN)
6 INCOMETAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #REERRZAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
() Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or () Bmx=E52BiIA
loss represents:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Current tax - Hong Kong REEHIE - BEBFEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) REEE (M 12() 963 3,291
Current tax - PRC Enterprise REERIE - FEEEMER
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) IR (KI5t 12(a) 10,084 7,298
Tax recovered arising from a change BT R &L Uk B A9 T 51
in tax rate (2,634)
Over-provision in respect TEERERS
of prior years - (923)
7,450 6,375
Deferred tax EEBER
Origination and reversal of BERIBEERNEENEER
temporary differences 0 (HEE12(0)
(note 12(b)) 1,311 317
Income tax expense SR H 9,724 9,983

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

100

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced
a two-tiered profits tax rate regime by enacting the Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the
“Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of a qualifying
corporation, which only one qualifying corporation within
the Group is selected, is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The Ordinance is
effective from the year of assessment 2018 - 2019.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the qualifying corporation for the year ended 31
December 2018 is calculated in accordance with the
two-tiered profits tax rate regime (2017: a single tax
rate of 16.5% was applied) whereas the provision
for other Hong Kong incorporated corporations are
charged at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
A subsidiary in the PRC was qualified as a high and

new technology enterprise in December 2017 and
can enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% (2017: 25%).

(i)

mEBERZAERE)

FBMER

20184 3 A + BB HATEMBHIE 2018 FH % (185]) (3
SOEGI] (T&B1)) - SIAEEFREHGIE - RELEFIE
FRHIE - ABA AR E 2,000,000 7T & R 5 A (BIA
EBANRE—EAERRAR) M ER8.25% + EARERT
i A BIIE 16.5 % B EL © 3Z G0 B 2018 F & 2019 F HY R
FRERAE -

At - HZE2018F 12 A1 HILFEMNAERRARINEL
FEHBEEDREEEFSHBERFEANE(2017F - @
AE—RE16.5%) MEMBBTMAZARFIUE16.5%
K& (20174 : 16.5%) °

PEREMEH

PEMHEBATIN2017F12 AEASHRIFCE
ZH15%BMEBRFE 2017 F 1 25%)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 MEBETZRZFEHR @®
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expense (b)) ERBIRBEFEH I HKREFHETR
and accounting profit at the applicable tax

rates:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before taxation FREERT R A 62,298 46,445
Notional tax on profit before EEBEEARETE Y
taxation, calculated at the BRI AR B R TEIE
rates applicable to profits in
the jurisdictions concerned 10,254 11,873
Tax effect of non-deductible DA 2 B 2
expenses 1,640 498
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEMERTRA Z RIS 2 (899) (1,264)
Effect of temporary differences R EERSIARZVE
not recognised (130) (201)
Effect of deferred tax balances 1 A1 BIRER AR X
at 1 January resulting from Enb=dlawd-Z
a change in tax rate 1,493 -
Tax recovered arising from a change  F PR R & (b i Uk (2] B9 B X
in tax rate (2,634)
Over-provision in respect of prior years & H &A% - (9238)
Actual tax expense FEBIES 9,724 9,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)

7  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 7 EE#Me
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  E ZBHESRIZEEC A BMER )E 383(1) fik A A1 <7 Al #1752
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the — #FRLAT :
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2018 fees e Ef contributions Total
F2018512A31 AEEL e EMRERN  BR2EAL RREHN CEH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors YTES
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae B AIEL
(Chairman) () 200 7 260 - 467
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 170 3,925 365 240 4,700
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXERT 170 3,727 465 300 4,662
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150 1,980 240 142 2,512
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIFIE LA 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210 - - - 210
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIEEE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming MRALE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 210 - - - 210
Alternate director REZS
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRS AE - 164 - - 164
1,830 9,803 1,330 682 13,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows: (Continued)

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

7 EEME(E

ZE=PERIFETBCARNENI)EE 383(1) 16 M A BI=F RIS S 2
WEMT : (8)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ inkind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2017 fees e i contributions Total
Z2017F12 A AFELL e RERET  BREL RASER CE
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae ez bt
(Chairman) () 200 7 260 - 467
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSE 170 3,798 365 240 4,573
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBAE 170 3,607 465 300 4,542
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rfgisfs 150 1,950 240 122 2,462
Non-executive directors FETES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFIBSAE 150 - - - 150
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRRATNE
(resigned on 26 May 2017) (20175 A 26 HEHT) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HREEE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210 - - - 210
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hEREE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 210 - - - 210
Alternate director REZS
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun Enibines - 157 - - 157
1,890 9,519 1,330 662 13,401

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
there was no amount paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals as set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was
also no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2018.

HZE2017F 20184 12 A31 HILFE - AL £ MK
FESATHMEE S A& HEA LSS SR E
BMAKMAREESEAHERERAENFRA - #HE
2017 K 2018 F 12 A1 BIEF[E  EEMMRELHMNE
kA B RE TR B S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments within the

Group, three (2017: three) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments

1B 5 & = #r B A

AEBSURRFHMA TP EIEIA (20174 1 3 )EE -
HBEZMEEIHAWFET » 88T 2062 (2017 F : 26 T Fr

in respect of the other two (2017: two) individuals are as AL ZBE& 2T
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e K H b i 1,301 1,335
Discretionary bonuses [NEEErersl 202 202
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 148 133
1,651 1,670

The emoluments of the other two (2017: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ER&SFBA L2062 (2017 F : 24L) BIEARIDHTAT -

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
HK$NIl - HK$1,000,000 BT T8 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 JTTE 76 % 1,500,000 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9  EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$52,574,000 (2017: HK$36,462,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
490,856,000 (2017: 483,500,000) shares in issue during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Basic earnings per share

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

9 BREF

@ BRELRZRZF
BEREARERZ i E R KRR B IR G AN FEE A S
52,574,000 7T (2017 4F : B 36,462,0070) MARIEF A 2

235 1T ANRE S 15 1% 81 490,856,000 (2017 £E : 483,500,000)
LARETE -

2018 2017
’000 ‘000
T B Tz
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January A1 A1 HEZETZ2EEMK 485,917 479,872
Effect of share options exercised TR 2 8
(note 20(a)(i)) (P 5E 20(a)(i)) 4,939 3,628
Weighted average number of Mm12 A31 Bz L@k
ordinary shares at 31 December DOEE R E 490,856 483,500

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$52,574,000 (2017: HK$36,462,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
494,850,000 (2017: 489,261,000) shares (diluted). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) is
calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings per share

(b) BREHEERF

FREERERN 2 E R AR &) IR (LA FE RSB
52,574,000 7T (2017 & : & # 36,462,000 70 ) M hn#E 15

A% 2% 494,850,000 (2017 £ : 489,261,000) (#%) L@k =t
=

Ea

2018 2017
’000 ‘000
T Fi%
Weighted average number of W12 A31 Bz LBk
ordinary shares at 31 December DI AR EL 490,856 483,500
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 1RIEAR X B1EE A HERT ] LA
the Company’s share option scheme ~ ZRERIERTTIG 2
for nil consideration (note 19) S22 (fIzE19) 3,994 5,761
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B Z Ltz
shares (diluted) at 31 December Do RS () 494,850 489,261

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

[0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s senior management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has identified six reportable segments on a geographical
basis: Japan, the United States, the PRC, Europe, Asia
(excluding Japan and the PRC) and rest of the world. The
electrical home appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the
world” segment covers sales of electrical home appliances
to customers in Australia, Canada, South America and
Africa.

() Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, contract liabilities, accrued charges
and other payables, with the exception of tax balances and
dividends payable, attributable to the manufacture and sale
activities of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from other revenue and net income,
and the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable
to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
other head office or corporate administration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEHE &)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (2) Z®WEE BEREG@)
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning BRES BB FAREEBITDAZ 7 HERIN - BIRETVERH
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment BN EHEE S - FIEWA KBS - TERMHEESE
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income  RE&BP C BRAFNEMELE D H 2 IERBDEHEEZ
and expense from cash balances managed directly by the ~ D EBEK} o REBD EHE 2 BIRSZHINEES L ZEE -
segments, depreciation and amortisation and additions to

non-current segment assets used by the segments in their

operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as  BERE T AEEGZREITREEA B UDRER KTE
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management 73 &b IR 2 ERIE TN T X °

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the year is set out below.

Electrical home appliances

FREE
Asia
(excluding Japan
The United States The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
A L] Bk b EH(FafRERYE) tREH ait

2018 a7 218 a1 2018 017 2018 a7 218 017 2018 Pl 218 a1
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKSO0D | HKS00 | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS00 | HKS000
ARTR| RHTn | MMTm| AR | MMTm| A¥Tn | AMTn| BETn | AW #4Tn | ARTm| Tn | ABTn| AT

Revenue fomextemal customers S5 EP Z4A 300708 | 252748 | 204304 | 133418 | 205207 | 303819 | 24281 | 215201 | 61389 | 45803 | 42,089 | 46,708 | 1,285,918 | 997607

Iner segment revenue REHIHA - - | 52585 | 514848 - - - - | 1,008,268 | 905420 - - | 1530853 | 1420268

Reportable segmentrevenue ~ R-EXEI2
recognised at a point in time THREHPUA 300,708 | 252748 | 816,889 | 046200 | 265207 | 303619 | 21,281 | 21520

1,069,657 | 951223 | 42,089 | 46,708 | 2816771 | 2417965

Reportable segment profit TREADEA

(adjusted EBITDA) (CREEBITDA) 2061 | 17100 | 22168 9028 8907 | 20550 | 24197 14564 | 117786 | 91099 3281 3161 | 198946 | 195516
Reportable segment assets M2A%18Z

asat 31 December TRENDEE = - 692 | 363942 - - - - | 515818 957338 - - %2735 | 91280
Reportable segment liabitties iM2A%18Y

asat 31 December ThRENDEE - - | (176479) [ (99,109 - - - - | (a3 | t1.0m0) - - | (350826) | (310179
Addifons to non-curent FERERD

seqmentassels duing heyear — SHEEREN - - 6838  %6% - - - - %) 17 - S| 50089 | %486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

%1531
10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 P3RS (@)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)) FHREDIMKA - B - BEEREEZHK

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Revenue LON
Reportable segment revenue ATERE D FPUA 2,816,771 2,417,965
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ~ A#F D 2RI AL 84 (1,530,853) (1,420,268)
Consolidated revenue AW A 1,285,918 997,697
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Profit A
Reportable segment profit AJERE D EE 198,946 155,516
Elimination of inter-segment profits NEB o 5B K R 35 (113,162) (87,999)

Reportable segment profit derived HAREEEINEF 2

from Group’s external customers Al A o EE 85,784 67,517
Other revenue and net income H U A NSRS 7,916 6,440
Depreciation and amortisation TE R (31,402) (27,314)
Finance costs UL - (198)
Consolidated profit before taxation LR BRT AR T 62,298 46,445
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AHREDIHEE 962,735 921,280
Elimination of inter-segment receivables P& 30 & Uk BR TE 4K 8 (121,227) (130,740)
841,508 790,540
Tax recoverable AR EIFIR 2,140 -
Deferred tax assets RETH IR E = 3,296 5,296
Consolidated total assets TEEEE 846,944 795,836
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 I/ E®)
(b) HWHRESBKA -8  BEERABBEZHE

(LB REMN)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities AHEHIHaE (350,826) (310,179)
Elimination of inter-segment payables &R 30~ BRIE K £ 121,227 114,832
(229,599) (195,347)
Dividends payable FERTRR B, (258) (232)
Tax payable FER TR (4,737) (4,162)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE (181) (734)
Consolidated total liabilities REBARE (234,775) (200,475)
(€)  Major customers () EEEF
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted ~ #F ZEF 15 Z WA - FFF 5 BG4 KA 10% 3k A
to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group, is set out £ » sF5I407F -
below:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Customer A ZEA 260,007 295,284
Customer B ZFB 253,359 269,800
Customer C ®FC 200,264 171,089
Customer D %FD N/A REF* 114,805
Customer E ®PE 185,120 -

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue.

* R WAL AR AN EH AR 10% SIA L

T \FFHR IRE

EBRAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Il EE&E
AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@ FREEENR
Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases  Buildings held fixtures and operating leases
Construction  HEHEMAE  forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor REfens Total
in progress BER B#EHE  machinery il vehicles  Sub-total BEER  HETEE
EEIR  zids JEEY  REREE  RERGA HE M zidEs fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK§ 000
EETT AT EETn AT AT EETR AT AEfr EETR
Cost S
At 1 January 2017 R0ITE1A1A 5,201 5,280 175,980 201952 137,260 10,829 536,547 15,017 551,564
Exchange adjustments R 374 - 11,299 11,097 12,304 558 35,722 1,149 36,871
Addtions bl 2,633 - - 429 8,885 2,676 36,486 - 38,486
Transfers &Y 23,320) - - 5,104 18,157 5 - - -
Disposals e - - (33 (5,69) (6,499) (1221) (13,448) - (13,448)
At 31 December 2017 ROTE12A31A 4,978 523 187,246 216,749 170,198 12901 597,307 16,166 613473
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A1H 4,978 523 187,246 216,749 170,198 12901 597,307 16,166 613473
Exchange adjustments R (322 - (7,620 (7730 (10227) (40 (26,302 (779) rom)
Addtions bl 33302 - - 7313 15679 273 59,089 - 59,089
Transfers &Y (30,974 - - 1307 20,647 - - - -
Disposals e - - - (3,887) (4,784 (697) (9,368) - 9,368)
At 31 December 2018 R18E12A31A 6,984 528 179,626 213832 200513 14,536 620,726 15,301 636,117
Accumulated ZitBERIE
amortisation
and depreciation
At 1 January 2017 ROITE1R1A - 2,004 144,865 150,861 84,921 8475 391,216 7,766 398,982
Exchange adjustments R - - 9,366 7,176 7918 49 24,389 b1 25,50
Charge for he year KEENE - 105 2,358 7800 15,715 T 2,928 %6 27314
Disposals i - - (2] (4,369) (5,797) (1,117) (11,307) - (11,307)
At 31 December 2017 ROTE12 AR - 2,199 156,56 161,477 102,757 8,728 431,726 8,763 440,489
A1 January 2018 RO18%F1 A1 - 2,199 156,560 161477 102,767 8,728 431,726 8,763 440,489
Exchange adjustments ik - - (6,399) (5,091) (6,069) (308) (17,867) 434 (18,301)
Charge for he year KEENE - 105 221 835 19,077 1,249 31,004 3% 31,402
Disposals e - - - (3.275) 4,29) (575) (6,148 - (8,148)
At 31 December 2018 R1BE12A31A - 2,304 152,387 161463 111467 9,004 436,715 8721 445,442
Carrying value REFE
At 81 December 2018 R1BE12ASA 6,984 2,981 21,289 52,369 89,046 5442 184,011 6,664 190,675
At 31 December 2017 W017%12A31 8 4,978 3,036 30681 5,072 67 441 4173 165,581 7408 172,984

| |w RAYM nnual Report 2018
-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B K&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B REN)
] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I BEEE &)
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)
(b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties (b) ¥IRIREFEDHAT :
is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
Medium-term leases FETEE
- in Hong Kong -B8 6,284 7,175
— outside Hong Kong — BB 30,550 33,945
36,834 41,120
Representing: 4PK -
Buildings held for own use FEBAREED 27,239 30,681
Interests in leasehold land held BRIV BHEEREE A
for own use under finance leases 2 HikER 2,931 3,036
Interests in leasehold land held RIBKEHEREE A
for own use under operating leases 2 HikER 6,664 7,403
36,3834 41,120

—E)\FFEH FMREEXARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

12

@)

RERE BBARR R FTEH

REMBIRRRZFTEH

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) REERE (M 6@)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BABEH 963 3,291
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PEIZEATISHL 10,084 7,298
11,047 10,589
Provisional tax paid TEER S
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BTG (4,217) (2,141)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PRI EPISHL (2,721) (4,561)
(6,938) (6,702)
4,109 3,887
Balance of income tax TFEMSRBEERTE
relating to prior years (1,512) 275
2,597 4,162
Represented by: 275 :
Tax recoverable AR EIFIA 2,140 -
Tax payable JERTTRIE (4,737) (4,162)
(2,597) (4,162)

wYM.mual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

12  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 RAHREHBRIERVFAEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)  Analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)) EELEHBREERBBINWT :
are as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Net deferred tax assets FIRERIRE E 3,296 5,296
Net deferred tax liabilities FRERIEAE (181) (734)
3,115 4,562

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised ~ AF/E ﬁ@%%éﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ%% REMRZELERBELE,(Af5)
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the — FUAERX S LEEB) 2 FHITIAT
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax losses FHITEEKX differences Total
BEERBEZEER : HIEEE RERITE HttEE=EE ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2017 Mm2017%F1H1H 119 (120) 4,603 4,602
Exchange adjustments HinEE) w8 - - 277 277
Charged to profit or loss Mkr1EEs

(note 6(a)) (FI3E6(a)) (32) - (285) (317)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12 431 H 87 (120) 4,595 4,562
At 1 January 2018 M2018%F1 A1 H 87 (120) 4,595 4,562
Exchange adjustments Hings) o2 - - (136) (136)
(Charged)/credited to profit  (F1B&) /zH AfEER

or loss, net (note 6(a)): (P& 6(a))
- arising from a change in - A R &1L

tax rate - - (1,493) (1,493)
- others - Hh (32) (4) 218 182
At 31 December 2018 7R 20184F 12 H 31 H 55 (124) 3,184 3,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

I3 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

13 =&
(@ REBERRERFEESE:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials R R 76,617 72,817
Work in progress A 25,336 17,595
Finished goods EERK &R 69,042 48,898
170,995 139,310

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (b)) BWEEHEZIMCEAREAMT :

recognised as an expense is as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold GFEHERAEE 1,092,137 852,941
Write-down of inventories FERE 802 86
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & Ji (& 2] (445) (5,054)
1,092,494 847,973

During the year, certain aged inventories were sold, and as a
result, a reversal of write-down of inventories of HK$445,000
(2017: HK$5,054,000) has been recognised and included in
cost of inventories sold.

4 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RER BFTREGEEEYL  BUFERERRDEE
445,000 7T (2017 4F : 715,054,000 7T ) O HERH T AFER

HEFEMA

14 EBZREMEWRIRE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T ST I

Trade debtors B 5EBA 261,565 194,209
Other debtors HpE A 20,525 12,754
Deposits and prepayments HEAENE 7,741 7,506
289,831 214,469

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from
certain deposits amounting to HK$1,531,000 (2017:
HK$1,148,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(@)  Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

14 EBEZREMEWIRE®)

@) FREDT

RERREZEHAZRRIZEZAHOFOT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Within 1 month 1{EAR 85,823 66,673

More than 1 month but less BiE1E AR 3EA

than 3 months 127,551 85,816
More than 3 months but less BiE3EAEBLRI12MEA

than 12 months 47,840 41,715

Over 12 months HBiE 1218 A 351 5

261,565 194,209

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 22(a).

(b)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Trade debtors that are not impaired

BHEBARBEAZERRI0E120RATIHE - AEEZ
EEBRFAEHNIEE22()

b) REBEZEZEBA

BREHBAZKRDNMIRBE DX EFLRELT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT IT

Neither past due nor impaired BB BEISORE 233,071 169,103

Within 1 month past due BHE L1 @A 24,685 19,856

More than 1 month but less wHAREA 1 R AEL R 3EA

than 3 months past due 2,983 5,184
More than 3 months but less wHAREASEAE LR 12ME A

than 12 months past due 744 61

Over 12 months past due wHRE A 1218 A 82 5

Amounts past due BHSEE 28,494 25,106

261,565 194,209

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
I5 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 BREeERRELESEEAR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Time deposits TEBRTF 3K 117,816 201,667
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER MRS 72,191 62,110
190,007 263,777
|6 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES l6  HSRHMEMRR
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT I
Trade creditors (note a) Z o EREA (Fita) 170,420 145,870 145,870
Accrued charges and other payables — JEfT 8 3 & E b FEfT B8R 18 59,179 46,826 49,477
Contract liabilities regarding sale of FAHERAERN
electrical home appliances (note b) AHEE (FidEDb) - 2,651 -
229,599 195,347 195,347
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FTEE 5 RHAMEFERIBIEHMN 1 FARZ A HER -
settled or recognised as revenue within one year.
Note: BfaE -
(@) The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the end of the  (a) RMEMRE SHERAZRRIZEZBHTOT :
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within 1 month 1EAR 63,803 71,040
More than 1 month but less BB 1 EAELRIEA
than 3 months 100,470 66,730
More than 3 months but less B3 EAELK12{8A
than 12 months 5,183 7,285
Over 12 months B@12{8A 964 815
170,420 145,870
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Note:  (Continued)
(b) As a result of adoption of HKFRS 15, using the cumulative

effect transition method, receipts in advance from
customers have been presented separately as contract
liabilities and opening balances at 1 January 2018 has been
adjusted accordingly.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit, which depends
on specific sales orders’ terms and new customers,
this will give rise to contract liabilities. The remainder of
consideration is payable when the promised goods are
transferred to customers upon the shipping terms stipulated
in contracts.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

le EBSREMENIRE®)
Wt (&)
(b) ARRE EEEE A RN E B ISR E%ERFE 1557 -

W EEHEDHE2H AR MERE 01841 A1H
RIS AR T ARRE SR

FERRANA B RONAR NG T

EARKEWEIET S (BURNSEHER] ENGERMHER)
B ERELGHNEE - BARNEYRARMRTNESR
GEREREETPE - BXNRIBORE -

Movements in
contract liabilities
EHEBENES
HK$’000
BET T
At 1 January 2018 H2018F 1 A1H 2,651
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EFERBERRAMRIE 2E
recognising revenue during the year that R2018FE1 A1 BZANERE
was included in the contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 (2,651)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H -

|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The scheme
is defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

17 FREHFRAKEE

AEBERELRIMELBESF IR SRETERMBIK
(T&B D) PIENEREMRE 2 BB RERICRHIERESS
g([MREsTE )  ZRBEDHEHBLEEESER -
RIEREDE AEEMEEEBYAGAKEERRH
£ 5% AREEF BN - HE LRATAE30,0007T
P IR IR TR L R ST IR B

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2018, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC.

18 BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$68,350,000 (2017: HK$68,350,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans and trade guarantee.
The amount utilised by the Group at 31 December 2018
under these facilities was HK$193,000 (2017: HK$519,000).

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 for the purpose to give eligible
participants incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group (Refer to the Report of
the Directors in the Annual Report for the details of the share
option scheme).
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17 REMFBEBRKREE @)

f£2018F 12 H31H » AKREME D E THRBFHEE
EEBREBEO (RG] MBRTE  EEEABTER=Z
ERHR%S  AMELWENIEEZBET  AEBEAN
ZEBEEARZEINBZERETREINERBRESH
EE o BFIANA SN 2 8 TR - AEBE20184F 12
A3 BERAESFTEITRGTZRBESHNEIRECEESR

g

AEEETENHELARTEATHEEAZBBETRIR
REKETE - WA IR P BB ARBEFIEE - AEBX
BETRBUFAIRERSREBHF S —EADLLFELMH
R MEBBTAGAEASBEETGENMBARZER
BEARKEKRE TZRRBENEE -

18 MITEEEE

f£2018F 12 A31 H - AEBERRTES 2 EAEKBEER
R E 4 B 7% 68,350,000 7T (2017 4F : % ¥ 68,350,000
TL) c RO ZEEREURAMER - i BHE
% BHERNESER ABHCREEEENAEE
193,0007¢ (2017 4 : B 519,0007T) °

19 BERECUARODAEERRS

ARRABMN2003F6 A6 AR BHIEE - EE/AER
S EERH RN EBMEL BRI e AREFLE
BMOBEEE - F2HFRTESSRETRERESS) -



19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@) The following table discloses movements of the  (a)

Company’s outstanding share options, which have
no specific vesting conditions, held by directors,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

employees and other eligible participants during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REMN)

EREFURDAERRS (&)

THREEHE2017EM2018FE12 A31 AILEEE
£ BEREMAEBATEENRRAGRITER
feiEEs) (WL BERESEHREERT)

Number of share options
EREHA
Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2018 Outstanding Outstanding at
RA%AS  at1 January 31 December
RER 2018 Exercised Lapsed 2018
Date of Exercisable R2018% R2018% duringthe  during the 20185
Type of participates ~ grant period Exercise price 12A31A 1A18 year year 12A31A
SMEER RiLAH AfTEH TEERE FENAERE AE RERE REARE A
HKS
Directors 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 t0 29 June 2018 0.91 - 7,831,600 (6,787,600) (1,050,000) -
EE N08F6A0R  200856A30HZ201856A29H
6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 0.63 18,901,488 600,000 (300,000) - 300,000
09F10A68 2009610 A6HZ 2019510458
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 19 July 2022 0.69 17,900,000 7,500,000 (300,000) - 7,200,000
N1FTANAE 20127 A0HZ2022457F198
Employees 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 t0 29 June 2018 091 - 1,240,000 (310,000) (930,000) -
€8 N08F6A30R  2008E6A30HZ201856A29H
6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 0.63 20,485,000 260,000 - - 260,000
09F10A68 2009610 A6HZ 2019410458
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 19 July 2022 0.69 24,380,000 1,425,000 (50,000) - 1,375,000
N1FTANR 20127 A0HZ2022457F198
Other eligible persons 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 t0 29 June 2018 091 - 900,000 (150,000) (750,000) -
HBABRAT  2008%6A308  200856A30HZ2018%F6F20R
81,666,488 19,762,600 (7,897,600) (2,730,000) 9,135,000
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s outstanding share options, which have
no specific vesting conditions, held by directors,
employees and other eligible participants during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

19 RZESURGAERRSZ @)

(@) TRIFEEHE2017FEM2018F 12 A31 BILFEE
£ BEREMAEBATEENRRAGRITER

e (WRARGRHEFERR) : (B)

(Continued)
Number of share options
BiESE
Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2017 QOutstanding QOutstanding at
gtz at 1 January 31 December
RAR 2017 Exercised 2017
Date of Exercisable Exercise RO17E R2017E during the R2017E
Type of participates grant period price 128318 1A1A year 128318
2NEER KRS {78 IREEE  FENGBRE AT RER{TE AT
HKS
Directors 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 t0 29 June 2018 091 23,461,488 9,587,600 (1,750,000 7,837,600
e 200856 F30A 200856 A30HZ201856A20H
6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 063 18,901,488 2,100,000 (1,500,000 600,000
2009510 76A 2009510 A6HZ 20195105
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 19 July 2022 069 17,900,000 8,700,000 (1,200,000 7,500,000
012%7F208 12F7A0BZ200257A197
Employees 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 t0 29 June 2018 091 10,230,000 2,235,000 (995,000) 1,240,000
€8 200856 F30A 200856 A30HZ201856A20H
6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 063 20,485,000 260,000 - 260,000
2009510 76A 2009510 A6HZ 20195105
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 19 July 2022 069 24,380,000 1,425,000 - 1,425,000
012%7F208 12F7A0BZ200257A197
Other eligible persons 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 091 5,695,000 1,500,000 (600,000) 900,000
EfhaEBAL 20085630 2008%6 A30AZ 201856 F29R
121,052,976 25,807,600 (6,045,000) 19,762,600
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 19 HERENSUROGEERRS &)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of  (0) BIE 2 88 R TR BT
share options are as follows:
2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
g1 HB IR e IR BNk E
TEE ZHE 7B ZHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
ik TR e T %
Outstanding at the FHARITEE
beginning of the year 0.7985 19,762,600 0.7981 25,807,600
Exercised during the year ~ ANF[E17{H 0.8896 (7,897,600) 0.7968 (6,045,000)
Lapsed during the year REF T - (2,730,000) - -
Outstanding at the end REFIERITE
of the year 0.6863 9,135,000 0.7985 19,762,600
Exercisable at the end NEEEAIITE
of the year 0.6863 9,135,000 0.7985 19,762,600

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.10 (2017:
HK$1.08).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.690, (2017: HK$0.630,
HK$0.690, HK$0.910) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.38 years (2017: 2.4 years).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, share options of
7,897,600 (2017: 6,045,000) were exercised and resulted in
7,897,600 (2017: 6,045,000) ordinary shares being issued
with proceeds of approximately HK$7,026,000 (2017:
HK$4,817,000). The related weighted average price at the
time of exercise was HK$1.10 (2017: HK$1.08). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, 2,730,000 share
options with unit value of HK$0.13685 lapsed by reason of
expiration of the share option scheme. The total value of the
share options lapsed of approximately HK$374,000 was
transferred to retained earnings (2017: Nil) during the year.

NEZITFERBBRERITER ZIMETFHRERBE1.10T
(2017 F : B¥E1.0870) °

#2018F 12 431 B R/ TEHERAE 2 178 A8 #0.6307T »
B 0.690 7T (2017 4« 7B #£0.630 7T * 7 #50.690 7T & 78
#0.91070) R ntEFH 5 T 24 FHJ23.38F (2017 F
24%) -

B E2018F12A31H IEF &+ B 177,897,600 (2017
F 1 6,045,000) R EEARKE - BEFE1T7,897,600/% (20174 -
6,045,000 % ) @A - #9758 7,026,000 7T (2017 F : B
4,817,0007T) ° {T{ERFHAEREINEFIHER BB 1.10T
(20174 : B¥1.0870) - HE2018F 12 31 HILFE
A IR ST 212 H - 2,730,000 AE BB AR AE O R s H B (7 (8
BE/EH0.13685 7T © BLRRNA BB AR HEAB [E 40781 374,000 7T
RERNERERFEF (2017 F  £) o

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black Scholes
model. The fair value measurement is categorised within
level 2. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

19 RBEREMURGA/AERRIS (@)

() BREZAFERRR

IR LB E S 2 R 2 X FETI2Z AR BRE
NFEMTE - IR M BRE 2 G A FETIZEHRN
T8 - A FEUDE2FE - BREZENFHIERILIA
BAZBAE - BEHERITENRERNEHERLN

BREE 2 A THERRR

Date of grant
e il=k
30 June 2008 6 October 2009 20 July 2012
20086 H30H 2009410856 H 20127 H20H

Fair value at measurement date REtERMBZ YA

Share price B&fE

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility (expressed
as weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as

TH R E AT DN
FHRERT)

weighted average life used in T8 T 2% 7€ P R htE
the modelling under the Black FHRIERT)
Scholes model)

Expected dividends TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate (based on EREFIE (FR3F
3-year Hong Kong Fund INERBES)

Exchange Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.
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TR IR (A RERIE

FBREF I (ASREHFEN

HK$0.13685 HK$0.11295 HK$0.0929
HK$0.90000 HK$0.61000 HK$0.6900
HK$0.91000 HK$0.63000 HK$0.6900
36.94% 44.579% 33.073%

3 years 3 years 3 years
6.67% 8.20% 6.687%
2.87% 0.931% 0.182%

FERE 2 R IS AR AR

B HLIR 08 J0 1% 48 1E R 08 (R 8 i 2 DN P19 R R 4 B &t
d - WILRIB AR RS ERIER B 1RR IR R T 2 8
EHRE - BHIRE NIRBEZREFE -
BZEEAHRFEZBHEREATE -

T8 ARKRIEA
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EXR-RERRE
(@) Share capital @ BE
(i) Issued share capital (i) ERITRA
2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
BERE BT T fIxiEgi= ST T
Ordinary shares, issued @R @ ©#17T
and fully paid: R#E
At 1 January ®1A1H 485,917,260 453,723 479,872,260 448 167
Share issued under share 317 7 B AR REAR (D
option scheme 7,897,600 8,084 6,045,000 5,556
At 31 December 712 A31H 493,814,860 461,807 485,917,260 453,723

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2018, options were
exercised to subscribe for 7,897,600 (2017: 6,045,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash consideration
of HK$7,026,000 (2017: HK$4,817,000).

ERRFSAABRINRERMERNORS - XHERNASE
ez LRER-—RRERR - MATBAREANKERIER
BEHHERFMAL -

(i) BRERTZIRAG
HZE2018F 12 A31 BFEE I - BT 7,897,600 %

ANEEER (2017 F 1 6,045,000 % LAY - BAREHEE
7,026,000 7T (2017 4F : /&% 4,817,000 7T) °

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 ¥ - #ERKRE @)
(Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued) (@ BRAEE)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) RBEHRREEAZRIBRKRTENBRE

options at the end of the reporting period

2018 2017

Exercise Number of Number of

Exercise period price |share options share options

1T TEE HE HE

30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 200846 A30H=E HK$0.910 - 9,977,600
20184 6 A29H EH#0.9107T

6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 2009F 10 H6 HE HK$0.630 560,000 860,000
2019 10 A5H 755 0.630 7T

20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 201246 7R20H= HK$0.690 8,575,000 8,925,000
20227 A19H 755 0.690 7T

9,135,000 19,762,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary B ABHUAE —RIBRERE —RAAREBERKR - B
share in the Company. Further details of these options are  EEREFFIEHN AT R EWFE19
set out in note 19.
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEHREN)
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 ¥& - f##ERRKRE (@)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends by KE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) REEEMAREEANTRREN
Company attributable to the year
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interim dividend declared and paid BEM RIRE 2 R B F R
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share BB 211
(2017: 2 HK cents per ordinary share) (2017 F : SR E@ALEE 2101) 9,876 9,718
Final dividend proposed after the end A& HAK & i 2 RN BB
of the reporting period of 4 HK cents @A B 411
per ordinary share (2017: 4 HK cents (2017 4F : BREEREE 410)
per ordinary share) 19,753 19,437
Special dividend proposed after the ~— RARIREEIRE 23 2 BRI B &M
end of the reporting period of T RA B 24
2 HK cents per ordinary share (2017 £ : %)
(2017: Nil) 9,876 -
39,505 29,155

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the P AR ¥R & HARZ 2

i
B

reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the & EHARKRER R AE °

end of the reporting period.

—E)\FFER IREXBR

N

IR 2 REIBE R BB E R AR

5
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(NBMAREN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

20 BAX - BERKS @)
b) BB
(i) REFEBTREEFAARRBERERFEE

R

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Final dividend in respect of the EFERPEEAFEERERM
previous financial year, approved FREBRSE 440
and paid during the year, of (2017 4F : HFRREBPBEE 4100)
4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2017: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 19,553 19,425
Special dividend in respect of the FHEERFIREERFEDHERTH
previous financial year, approved FREEBREE 2L
and paid during the year, (20174 : FREBIBEZTIT)
of nil cents per ordinary share
(2017: 2 cents per ordinary share) - 9,712
19,553 29,137
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves () REZHEEREHN
(i) Exchange reserve (i) & WA

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(r).
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons

recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(n).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$2,004,000 (2017: HK$3,629,000).

(d)

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$31,515,000 (2017: HK$32,372,000).
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of 4 HK cents (2017: 4 HK cents) per
ordinary share and a special dividend of 2 HK cents (2017:
Nil) per ordinary share totaling HK$29,629,000 (2017:
HK$19,437,000). These dividends have not been recognised
as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

(e)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Distributability of reserves

Capital management

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

20 EXR - RERBRE®
(0 REZIHERBNE)
(i) PEEEHE

KBRPREAREMBEZZERETHEEZ Bk AEE
ZHEHBARBINEBELE ALK 10% D 2 FHiE
BN ERFEE EEZREBEITMELRNLS0% A
IF - ERFEHERALEEFEE RILERNIEHEREEIB
MMER - KFE DA LBEE2EFELH B 2,004,000
JC (2017 4 = 7% 3,629,000 7T) °

(d) WP ERE

MR2018F 12 AT ARG AN ETAARKRRE  HES
%8 5 75 31,515,000 7T (2017 4+ 4 32,372,000 7T ) °
RARERE  EFTEZEET SR T BRAHREFE4
(2017 4F - B EE4L) R &M% T8 IR B AR B8 B 24l
(20174 : £ )+ A 518 #29,629,000 7T (2017 & : &
19,437,000) » AARERELBREREREEE -

(e) EAXERE
AEEZEABEAEERANRENEM 2 HELEY
RE » DABEEL AR M AR SRR (L B3R 2 (A E A 4B BEA T4
R - DA RER RERBRKT X2 ERERERNLAE
AL ERES -

AEBETHRERRTEEAEBUET FEF O HRAR
R RERZE2REHEAEEARRR  REKLERBR TEL
BENEER D EE 2 I

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the year 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2017, was to maintain the net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio of no more than 44% (2017: 37%).
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2018
and 2017 was as follows:

20 EBEX - REERRE @

(e) EXETEE(E)

BEITREN -2 AEEGUFEEHKAERER RS
HEERHEALE - sl AEEZRBRE(BRES N
His BRI R BB EE) TR 2RI ERE - &
ABEABEMAEDR TR ZZRERE

R 20184 » AEB 2RISR 2017 F— 5 - BREHEFE
18 B BRI ARB L 5 TR I8 44% (2017 5 : 37%) » B T #
TR - NEEAREAREIRNS FREZRS -« 3
TEE - RERATIRE - EEFCEERERTLEEE
LUBAMETR ©

R 2018 K 2017 F 12 A 31 B 2 % & (B &L B A B,
Bl -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

Current liabilities: mEAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RE M EIRIE 229,599 195,347
Add: Proposed dividends 0 ERFRERR S 29,629 19,437
Net debt S&FE 259,228 214,784
Total equity B 612,169 595,361
Less: Proposed dividends W BRI ERRE (29,629) (19,437)
Adjusted capital BAEER 582,540 575,924
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FEEEFFEREHLLAF 44% 37%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2] COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

21 TRIE

20184 12 A 31 AR & MM E 2 A lRB AR & A%
FEm

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Contracted for: BEL
— Purchase of equipment and moulds - B 2 &% & M 18 B 2,859 3,858

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 36% (2017: 47%); and 90%
(2017: 82%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

22 HXEEREERAFE

EE - BoRBE  MEREIINERRENAEE N —KE
BERPEL GELART AV BRAREZAKENTH
EEBRRNERR T

@ FERBRSEDEE
AEBENEERRIERARERBSESEEARESE
BA - BAEERBZELSINGAPBRARTEE
P B EREE

AEBTEZRELREEFERE " REANGEERKZE
ARTESREE E2RPUEZEERREEREEAX
SHEFINHRREREEFERBIRCER T MK
W K B SRIZ ) 2 RSB TEHAE

rEEFERZEFEERR  FEIXZEFZARNFCMY
B RFREMEZITERBRZEBERERTFZEEER
B HEREEREERD RARSHRLE  FEENREAE
P1hE S1EEAFIE36% (20174 © 47%) 2 90% (2017 4F :
82%) :  WAR—TEREMNEEEPRE -

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

The directors of the Company have considered the credit
risk of trade receivables and note that there was no actual
loss nor significant past due experience over the past
10 years, including periods of unfavourable economic
conditions. The directors consider the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no allowance for credit losses were made as
at 31 December 2018.

Comparative information under HKAS 39
Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see

note 2(g)(i)(B) - policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired was disclosed in note 14(b).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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22 BXEREERAFEE

) EERBREPEREE)

RESHEHBAME  BEEARENEERER  TEHE
BT AR M EE noﬂﬂﬁﬁgitﬂ%FEﬁéﬁ
ZEREHEHITENEETE - WETHEEHERFIU
TR B RARNEMNEN  UEBREFHNE
FIER RBFMENCERENER - EFEINGIERE
HAREEE HAEFT30-120 AN EIH] - B — B 2 JRIERF &
% HEEEEEATERTEANEMGEE - AEE—K
TemRELWEERS -

AEBNSNEEFENNBRERBEANEHAEES
YR BRER - ARAKENELERBRRERY
AERATAEPHENBARAGTCEREEZE  AULERB
HIRENBRER T @E—PROAEENTRAEF,E -

RNAREZRCEEEZFRUFENEZERR  RIFBET
FEBIEE mgﬁ?aiﬁﬁtﬁm \LﬁETf‘Ji&@EHﬁ
NEE - EERA BEHERUGEMELREEBEBME
A B 48 [ B ITEK Br2018F 12 A31 B EEHE
BEa8E -

EBETER9THERER

fE2018F1 A1 HZH  RBEEEREBBEERBEFERE
IR A ERREER K (R RW:E2(g)(1)(B) -201841 A

1B ZAEAMBEK) °

RIEEARMENE S EWFERNRE DT FE14 (b) 3
FE o

BE AR B HA AR E ) JE IR IR B i R A B AV RS B2
EEHR -
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39 (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 14.

(b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Liquidity risk

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

22 BXEREERAFEE
@ EERBEREFRRE(E)

EBETER9THERES (F)

B B ORI ) R SOR B T A S B R AT AR 3D
BOBIELEN  RIEBEER  CEERABARZ
SERERRERE  FASEEELMEAREY L HE
AR AT 2 BUKE -

BRAKEREZEBAMELNEERR
WM 14

HE— S EIL

(b) ERREMREES

AEBET ALK EREALSARLERAR B
FEREPRSABRBRERENERNRNR TR - AEEH
PBREATHERBEREHRIRSMT LR - UERELS
BRARSHERTNSEHERR Y F5  WEHHEH
EREBREETR

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

22 BREREERAFE®
(b) ESRBMERES(E)

TRINEAEEZFTENSRABRREHRRZHBTE
HWHIRFS - ERERAH LWRBMBAZRSR (BER
BROEZME  KWRFHMEEENBERR - StEZ
MBI EAKBREFEERZ AHGFE -

2018 2017
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  #iHEEH demand Camying  HEHEAH demand
amount HMEEEE  6FEARD amount  RUEEEE  6EAA
REE ZEER  EXEFR REE ZEER  ERENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AR AR AR BETT BETT BETTT
Trade and other payables EoRAMERNRE
(excluding contract liabilities) (TBEENEE) 229,599 229,599 229,599 192,696 192,696 192,696

>
d. Annual Report 2018
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from cash
and cash equivalents which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

22 BXEREERAFEE
() FIZREPS

REBEZFMERRFIESRENRSFEEE 2HOTEH
FERERSIBAEBERSREMNERAR - NEEZF
EEERATEETEIWES ()T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) F) 22 2 B
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
% %
BRAIE HK$’000 ERF & HK$'000
% BT T % P T I
Fixed rate bank deposits ~ $R77E #3177 30 & E )& 1.92 117,816 0.55 201,667
Variable rate bank deposits  $R17F BIERUE B 0.10 66,974 0.18 30,542
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) WWEBEDW

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$655,000 (2017: HK$443,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2017: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

M2018F 12 A1 HIEMBEME L ERMEFTENIBR
T AR IR ARG, SR A 100 86F + o BIE N,
WA AREE 2 BREE TR AR D EFEL D BIE 655,000
TC (2017 4F : B#443,0007T0) - Bt T FI K EB) 7
BEE(2017F  BEZL) -

NERBRESNTEREFNEZEHERARERRTEME
o WEEARSRARZBFMEREITERETET BT
BZFMERK - 1002 FRENSRVIEEREHEZ T —
BEFEERERRBE A KA ERBEE 2 F11E - DT
2017 S HEEL . EAE#T -
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollar and British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

22 HERBEERAFE®@
(d) IMERBR
(@) SHEx5

AEBEIZHRNUAZFREEBRNEEBUIN2ERTIE
ZWAFZ B ZAAEINER R - BREEARZEE T

(i) CRIALEREE
ERUNEBNEEBUINZERBEZHEBE SR X
ENHIEA  AEBSEL2RNERN T FER - URE
EXREARELINE  BRFZESQHEFAE—ETEIN
RE -

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at (i)  FRIIRAEBRRE BRETEF LIRS
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BEEMLIIN—EEBYENEEXBEM AR
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in BB KRR o
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.
2018 2017
United United
States British States British
Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds
EH HEE ET e
’000 ’000 ’000 '000
T T T T 4%
Trade and other receivables & 5 M E b fEUNBRIA 25,065 149 22,248 768
Cash and cash equivalents 3R& RIBSZEEIEH 22,013 1,098 30,808 87
Trade and other payables 2 5 K E B BRIE (6,400) - (8,362) -
Net exposure arising from  BHERZ EEM
recognised assets and BEMBUFE
liabilities 40,678 1,247 44,694 855

Annual Report 2018
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(d)
(iv)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

22 BREREERAFE®
(d) MRS (8)
(iv) BBESH

TREEBEAEERARERNRIEMAXERNRARZERZ
RIERREE B UIRTL B IR MR B ENK 2 BEHE ) -

2018 2017

Effect Effect

Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit

(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and

foreign retained foreign retained

exchange earnings exchange earnings

rate HERBIR rate T

E=xigm, A RIRE bEE =38 0, A RARE

O A) BRIz 8 CRLA) BNz &

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

British Pounds g 5% 521 5% 342
(5%) (521) (5%) (342)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table ERFIIIRZAOMERESEER AR EE CBREE R

represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities” exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States Dollar against other currencies.
The percentage of increase and decrease in foreign
exchange rate represents the management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

REBEEERBERRZEX(GL2RMF) LRRE

TLRt R 2 AR Z 85T -

FREDMIIBREXZHNFERNREL - XA
SESEENRNZANFEZHRITLESRTAMASZE
KRk MAAEMAIZRR(LENE)RFETE - 5
o BRETAETZHIER I ERARXTHEEME

ERBMEEAYE
REZT—EERERS
7 2 ZEREE 2017

2512 BBIEE
#K LB 2 212
%2 ERAAR -

T {31
B - 1T
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair value as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

() Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group

represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7.

22 BXEREERAFEE

(e ADYVE
FiEemI Az ABRSFEEEN 2018 4F & 2017 F 12 A 31
HZ AFEEERTE -

23 BBAZERRZREER

@ FEEEEAEMS

£EEBEREARMNSEET AR TNTE BRI T
1958 -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BET T

Short-term employee benefits MHIEERA 11,659 11,382
Post-employment benefits &1 AREF 682 662
12,341 12,044

(b) Other related party transactions

(i) In April and November 2018, the Company entered
into an agreement with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) to acquire two
precise electrochemical machining machines for
cash consideration of HK$1,900,000, which have
been delivered to the Company’s premises. RJW
Technology is controlled 10% and 80% respectively
by each of the two executive directors, Mr. Wong,
John Ying Man and Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin.
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() 2018 4 AM 11 A - AR BIERIWHITHRAR]
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23  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

(c) Balances dealt with related parties

Balances with subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position contained in note 26(a).

24 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend and a special dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 20(b).

25 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

23 BBAZERRZRERE)

(c) ERAEERLEEER

HEARWBRAR 2 EHREERRRNM B RR 2 F
26(a) FIHEE

24 AHEHERAARSZR

AR EHEEL  EFEBREZRPFENISRIME - 5F
IERAMEE20(0) °

25 MEBATER
FEREEEE BERABIMBATNBENOT - B
ERIBIE - TS A 2 IR AL mAR -

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BETR b activities
NAER Bl Fens BRRAZFE BhER TEEH
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands Bk 1REBRER1ET RENE
EERRS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture and sale
Appliances Development Company i i 1S$22,380,000 of electrical home
Limited (Note) AR appliances
MR (ZBEYD)BHYR 22,380,000% 7 RERHE
BRAR (K FRES
Note: BFsE -

The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Appliances Development Company Limited for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, prepared under generally
accepted accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have been

audited by B/ EB & TEIEBHAER AT

MER(EBEYD) EREEARARHEZE2018F 12 A1 HIEZF
EUFERERETRGATURS  BEREMNESSTHMESIE
PRAFIE ©
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)

26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

(a)  Statement of financial position

26 ZEQBHBER

(@ BBEMRRE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ) E N L 3,319 1,820
Investments in subsidiaries HEARIRE 173,703 173,703
177,022 175,523

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 3,016 2,118
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M EIERIA 197,646 180,882
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSE B A R BRTE 42,572 14,597
Tax recoverable AR EIRIR 2,140 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeE MBS EEEE 181,366 233,555
426,740 431,152
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables E 5 R E M E RIS 90,547 98,238
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASTBT B A B BR1E 18,628 18,388
Tax payable FEfFIE - 1,283
Dividends payable RS 258 232
109,433 118,141
Net current assets MENEEFRE 317,307 313,011
Total assets less current liabilities & E R B & & 494,329 488,534

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE & 148 148
NET ASSETS EESE 494,181 488,386

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital A 461,807 453,723
Reserves H b 32,374 34,663
TOTAL EQUITY R 494,181 488,386

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 28 March 2019.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
BERA
Director

EF

RAYM*LJN Annual Report 2018
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Wong, Raymond Man Hin

BEXHE
Director
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZXATRRMEER®)

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (b) TFREFIRQFEHEDEKRBOEFEN

individual components of reserve during the BETE
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
B BERGHE REEF AR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(s AT BT BT AR
At 1 January 2017 H2017F1 A1 BES 448,167 3,030 24,889 476,086
Changes in equity for 2017: 2017 BB 2E
Profit and total comprehensive RERNRZE
income for the year lEnyit - - 46,338 46,338
Dividends approved in respect #ERE
of the
- current year - AF 20(b)(i) - - 9,718 9,718
— previous year -AF 20(o)(i) - - (29,137) (29,137)
Shares issued under share BRED #1720
option scheme
— gross proceeds - ElE 20(a)i) 4,817 - - 4,817
— transfer from capital reserve - HEAREEY 739 (739) - -
5,556 (739) 7,483 12,300
At 31 December 2017 W2017 512 A 31 B4 453,723 2,291 32,372 438,386
At 1 January 2018 H2018 1 A1 BER 453,723 2,291 32,372 488,386
Changes in equity for 2018: 2018 FREREH
Profit and total comprehensive AEGFIRZE
income for the year eyt - - 28,198 28,198
Dividends approved in respect HAERE
of the
- current year - AF 20(b)(i) - - (9,876) (9,876)
— previous year -FF 20(o)i) - - (19,553) (19,553)
Shares issued under share ke g2 kG
option scheme
~ gross proceeds - ElE 20(a)(i) 7,026 - - 7,026
— transfer from capital reserve - HEARESYR 1,058 (1,058) - -
Share options lapsed BB = (374) 374 -
8,084 (1,432) (857) 5,795
At 31 December 2018 R2018 512 A 31 H&8 461,807 859 31,515 494,181

—E)\FEH FIREEXARAR 139




140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

() Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis or reducing balance basis over the estimated
useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from the previous estimation.

(b)  Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases, and
investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of the
asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

The Group considers the ECLs of trade receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected
credit losses which is taking into account the credit loss
experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables, customers’
repayment history and customers’ financial position and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.

RAYM*UJ Annual Report 2018

27  EEHhET R AR

EFEEANAREZ @ BERNTE  BERABEARE
BZHBRAREEXEAEATE - REGTHRER
AEBRABMGARAGETEEEM L - B SHERE
REREEZ GEERFINT

@ HE

WE R R BN EER BRI AR R
FRERITE - SE S SER RS EEN T AED
B R BRB R A0 - SRR AT B B S @ R OB 3 B
PEVE AT -

(b) HE

ZRIETHE BELARE REKLEHERIFERZ
Tt RHBARZRE KA W@ EZE A s H IR RE
BiE AETEECA OISR - AR eRRFEE R
EREEME LRSS - ARUETEEEZMBMETEER
SR - MDA EE EETEREER
BEMELZEHMRERENNTREEREGEE - MER
LBERBEKFEREEXNACRFREEHEENE - A&E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Impairments (Continued)

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic conditions.
The information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 14 and 22(a). If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.

()

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(d)

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual sale of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

Inventory provision

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

27  EEHhEETRHE @)

(b) R{E(E)

IR TE B2 PR 1B Sk S 3R SR 0 {1 AN BRI 48 B A B AR R IR 8
B BREHERBAMAEEE 5 ERFIENE R K
14 %22 (a) #i 55 o R K KB 151K 5 o 788 59 48 75 ik
B - BEREREFESEEAMEET -

() P8
EEMESHBESRYEE TR S RKBIARE 2 54 R
BRAUZRE - AEEREWTHTZH2BEHIE - T F

IR B IR - ZFRH 2 HIARIETE Biast - PAG
RIBER 2 FREEE) -

BERBEET RS R EEFINBRERE 2 MEBEE
R o RN FIE LT IR B E(E 7 R JOR RIS AT A (F 85
AEBERREN SRR SHER - BEEANERKE
ARBOE M Z AT REME o B IR 2 AHA TOE HIRAT - f R SR
AR RIS Ao AP R EIRAE R IR B - RIS ERBIMELTH
THERE °

(d) E8E

AEERNTERRAIZEE

Fed

R AT - TEEIRKHE - &

i“‘%&%\JI%ﬁZTfﬁEE@ ERtiest - ERFEERE
ETHREREGEFREEFEMEFERE BAREFPE

RRE  BRHEESHEL[AEZERE TR E
i Mk E A
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

28  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HK(IFRIC)23 Uncertainty over income
tax treatments’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption the standard may differs as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June 2019. The Company also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards
are initially applied in that financial report.
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28  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THEYEAR ENDED
3| DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B AREN)

28 EZE20I18F 1283 HIEFEECHEMER

EMzEE] - HEARREZBEERE
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REFBEFERET7H  ARECHBE L (KAEES
AN ERENHEENA - ERABWHRELENFE 165
AREBHRFEENBNEREY RIAKERENH
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Five Years Financial Summary

IFHERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #mEHEHER
LOSS
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T EET T EET T BT T
Revenue A 1,034,875 988,449 1,019,442 997,697 | 1,285,918
Profit before taxation BREFE R 7 44,169 44,745 72,704 46,445 62,298
Income tax FriS 8t (15,883) (8,417) (21,693) (9,983) (9,724)
Profit for the year iN/NCT Y
attributable to equity RE R 2 5 F)
shareholders of the
Company 28,286 36,328 51,011 36,462 52,574
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #REMBMRRE
POSITION
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BT T BT T BET T
Property, plant and YE - BB M
equipment 196,514 165,693 145,331 165,581 184,011
Interests in leasehold land  IRIBE L E#H1E
held for own use under BRZ TR
operating leases 9,076 8,142 7,251 7,403 6,664
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 7,476 8,346 4,910 5,296 3,296
Net current assets MENEEFE 383,356 382,380 414,705 417,815 418,379
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE (174) (168) (308) (734) (181)
Net assets BEFE 596,248 564,393 571,889 595,361 612,169
Share capital P& 438,527 445,821 448,167 453,723 461,807
Reserves et 157,721 118,572 123,722 141,638 150,362
Total equity attributable to /A AR FFE(G %S
equity shareholders of
the Company 596,248 564,393 571,889 595,361 612,169

RAYM"AnnuaI Report 2018
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